e lER

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z--S+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
THERT TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MEYA Interest income 6 1,135,362 1,032,602
FMBEXH Interest expense 7 (323,263) (177,789)
FERE WA Net interest income 812,099 854,813
EmEHREFE Net premiums earned 8 533,536 658,854
H A Other income 9 232,471 197,865
mEWA Operating income 1,578,106 1,711,532
R BB 5 Net claims written back 8 6,642 17,618
e B %5 Net commission expenses 8 (162,541) (108,000)
X Operating expenses 10 (219,267) (191,932)
RETRERTHYAS &) A Operating profit before impairment 1,202,940 1,429,218
BRURER#(BE) Write-back/(charge) of
loan impairment allowances 13 5,680 (3,141)
A Operating profit 1,208,620 1,426,077
JE fi 2L [R)42E I B B Va7 Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,450 2,830
BRBE A A Profit before taxation 1,211,070 1,428,907
HIE Taxation 14(a) (85,524) (173,225)
A R F Profit for the year 1,125,546 1,255,682
PEfRRF,(B518) ¢ Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Vi NN 51 Equity holders of the Company 1,125,393 1,255,731
R PRSI AR IR Non-controlling interests 153 (49)
1,125,546 1,255,682

F1NE21N EFTE M s ALR
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financial statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HECR-——F+-A=t—-HILHEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
TET F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEE @A Profit for the year 1,125,546 1,255,682
Hp 2wk - Other comprehensive income:
A E Available-for-sale securities:
%“‘iﬁhﬂﬁlﬁé}%ﬁ — net unrealised gains 32 357,875 107,682
— HERQTFEZSHEA — fair value changes transferred to
WK income statement on disposal 32 (38,230) (51,884)

— 5 — amortisation 32 39 663

— 1A — tax effect 32 (52,748) (9,316)
& EF - Cash flow hedges:

— EETHEMEERE — net gains arising from hedges recognised

EoEapall eyl in other comprehensive income 32 - 2,396

—BARERA — fair value changes transferred to

N {EEE) income statement 32 5,495 10,195

—HiIA — tax effect 32 (907) (2,078)
BE G INETSRFE AR Exchange differences on translation of

fE R =R foreign operations

— Fﬁ%’&‘? — subsidiary 1,015 5,366

HEBEH T — jointly controlled entity 32 5,276 (3,784)
FEEHERIIESIEEEMEE  Share of other comprehensive (losses)/

(&), e income of a jointly controlled entity 32 (32) 279
R B IR A Release of fair value reserve and translation

L NS R =N reserve upon disposal of investment in

IE 5 a jointly controlled entity 32 (7,733) -
AEZHEMEEE Other comprehensive income for the year,

[EEAIGS net of tax 270,050 59,519
rEEXEKFEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,395,596 1,315,201
EiE2mEmkaE2sE Total comprehensive income attributable to:

AARRER Equity holders of the Company 1,395,342 1,314,713

RS RERR R Non-controlling interests 254 488

1,395,596 1,315,201

F1NE2N BTSN AR A VSRR —25 ©

financial statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZZ—=—F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2012

2012
THET )
HK$'000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
ReNEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 9,715,544 10,245,165
FEF B R E R Interest and remittance receivables 18 469,590 590,998
TTESRTIEA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,443,013 1,559,187
BERAEEFRE Loan portfolio, net 20 25,895,399 33,135,818
BHEE Investment securities:
—AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 5,812,827 2,303,703
—RAEH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 9,237,808 8,269,148
HEEHIEEEIRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 - 130,045
FENRIE - IRE REMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 39,641 27,097
EEEE Fixed assets 25 29,128 31,274
BREEE Reinsurance assets 28 222,007 208,911
BEHAE Total assets 52,864,957 56,501,346
a& LIABILITIES
FERFE Interest payable 26 235,756 237,244
& T‘HPEIE RS & Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hip B (& and other liabilities 27 4,465,116 4,274,883
MESRTA Derivative financial instruments 19 175,095 139,582
EHBIEAE Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 101,587 134,785
EEFIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 109,404 52,672
REREE Insurance liabilities 28 1,545,863 1,630,595
2 TEEE S Debt securities issued 29 36,404,627 41,097,207
BETIRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 30 214,672 367,137
=Rtk Total liabilities 43,252,120 47,934,105
s EQUITY
EmEA AR Capital and reserves attributable to
AR R RE the equity holders:
[N Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
{RER 4 7l Retained profits 5,302,410 5,173,228
BORAR S Proposed dividend 16 750,000 350,000
ENEELE contingency reserve 32 977,773 731,562
NS Fair value reserve 32 569,109 302,615
ER Hedging reserve 32 (8,656) (13,244)
PE o Translation reserve 32 9,778 10,911
9,600,414 8,555,072
RIEHERRANER Non-controlling interests in equity 12,423 12,169
B Total equity 9,612,837 8,567,241
EEREREHE Total liabilities and equity 52,864,957 56,501,346

BEFERN-_ZT—=FHA+RBEIEREET] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April
17 ° 2013.

BRER Norman T. L. Chan REX Eddie W. M. Yue
BlFE#FHTEFE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director HITEE Executive Director

FINE21N EFFE T Atr A I EHER—585 o The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

RZZ-—Z=—F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2012

2011
FHETT
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReMEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 9,588,343 10,121,847
JE UL FI B K B R Interest and remittance receivables 18 460,415 578,070
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,443,013 1,559,187
BRAEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 21,943,803 28,006,425
FHHIE Investment securities:
— A E — available-for-sale 21(@a) 5,812,827 2,303,703
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 21(0) 9,237,808 8,269,148
fi B AR E Interests in subsidiaries 22 3,943,669 4,986,708
HEEFIE B E Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 - 120,554
TENHIE B hEHEMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 46,520 188,787
B E & E Fixed assets 25 29,116 30,949
BREBREE Reinsurance assets 28 222,372 208,911
EEHRE Total assets 52,727,886 56,374,289
aE LIABILITIES
FEH A B Interest payable 26 235,686 237,128
FEIRIE - BEAX R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
EmaE and other liabilities 27 4,687,729 4,634,004
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 19 175,095 139,582
2 HHIEEE Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 100,563 135,131
REFIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 109,103 52,696
REREE Insurance liabilities 28 1,548,076 1,630,595
BEBITESE S Debt securities issued 29 36,404,627 41,097,207
EEEE Total liabilities 43,260,879 47,926,343
B EQUITY
A AR Capital and reserves attributable to
R fef the equity holders:
N Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
IR % Retained profits 5,178,781 5,077,455
R A% B, Proposed dividend 16 750,000 350,000
2\ Bex % 8 Contingency reserve 32 977,773 731,562
N ERHE Fair value reserve 32 569,109 302,173
HOh A Hedging reserve 32 (8,656) (13,244)
EREE Total equity 9,467,007 8,447,946
BERERETE Total liabilities and equity 52,727,886 56,374,289

BEROR-_Z—=FNA+HBIEREET] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April
1T 2013.

BRER Norman T. L. Chan REX Eddie W. M. Yue
SIFEFHITESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director HITEF Executive Director

BN BE N A IS HREN—35 - The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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FARRRBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z--S+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

RARRREN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRI
: e
e REwA* H e Non-
Share Retained Other controlling et
capital profits* reserves interests Total
Ti#r Ti#n Ti#n Tir Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B-—-%-A—-HE&H Balance as at 1 January 2011 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
REER/ (B) Profit/(oss) for the year - 1,255,731 = 49) 1,255,682
MEHEELATENZEEE - Netfairvalue gains of available-for-sale
BHRHIE securities, net of tax 2 - - 47,424 - 47,424
RemmnEe T - Net change in cash flow hedges,
Bl net of tax 32 = = 10,513 - 10,513
BE B EBRELR Exchange differences on translation of
BiERE foreign operations
—HBAR — subsiciary 2 - - 4,829 537 5,366
HEZHER — jointly controlled entity 2 - - (3,784) - (3,784)
FER2ENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,255,731 58,982 188 1,315,201
BRZRFEAD REARR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFBH 0% 75% 2 premium earned from retained
Gl profits to contingency reserve 32 - (307,140) 307,140 - -
HEREREEDZREET Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 2 - 13,013 (13,013) - -
B3 -TERE Dividend paid related to 2010 - (350,000) = = (350,000)
R-E--FE+-A=1-R%&#  Balance as at 31 December 2011 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241
AEE T Profit for the year - 1,125,393 - 153 1,125,546
EHEEAMATEKZEE - Netfar value gains of available-for-sale
BHBRFHE securities, net of tax 32 - - 266,904 - 266,904
BERe S FE  CIRHIE  Net change in cash flow hedges,
net of tax R - - 4,588 - 4,588
BENEBRELNEL ZE Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
—HBAF — subsidiary 2 - - 914 101 1,015
LRGBS — jointly controlled entity 2 - - 5,276 - 5,276
HELRRHERRE Disposal of investment in
ajointly controlled entity 2 - = (7733 - (7733
AEELERSER Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,125,393 269,949 254 1,395,596
ARERTIBACRARR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFEN50%375% 2 premium earned from retained
Gl profits to contingency reserve 32 - (266,266) 266,266 - -
BRRFEREZRART Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 2 - 20,055 (20,055) - -
BT ——FRE Dividend paid related to 2011 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
R-Z--FE+-A=+-R&#  Balance as at 31 December 2012 2,000,000 6,052,410 1,548,004 12,423 9,612,837

@ RZZE——F+-_A=+—H BRRZ&EANHE ~* As at 31 December 2012, HK$750 million (2011: HK$350 million) of retained profits was
750,000,000 7t (== ——4 : 350,000,000/ 7T) earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained profits.
EREERAHIRS.

FINE2VN BTSN AR MRz —E65 < The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-—-S+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012

B 5T TERT
Notes HK$'000

2011
FTAT
HK$'000

REXBABRERE Cash flows from operating activities
£ Al Operating profit 1,208,620 1,426,077
AT SIBEL R AZE Adjustment for:
A EMA Interest income (1,143,387) (1,043,095)
MEZH Interest expense 262,501 111,620
fig BUTA Dividend income 9 (90,135) (65,071)
e Depreciation 10 14,127 8,609
HEBRTEEERNEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 51
BT ERE ST R Amortisation of discount on
debt securities issued 60,762 66,169
T FORE (B8, B (Write-back)/charge of loan impairment
allowances 13 (5,680) 3,141
Wiz [a] 4 85 ) & 5K Recoveries of loans previously written off — 20(b) 2,110 2,452
EH HEZLFEIEES Amortisation of unrealised loss on
2 B B S T Y available-for-sale securities transferred
*@fﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ to held-to-maturity securities 32 39 663
BHIEE R EEE Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 7,985 9,830
HEXRE W F5E Net gain on disposal of investments 12 (90,260) (64,952)
HeEHdEEHI TR A Gain on disposal of investment in
a jointly controlled entity 9 (7,137) -
ST AR EEE Change in fair value of
financial instruments (23,558) (5,999)
RIBRSRE H RS Change in translation of financial assets
TRIEES under cash flow hedge 32 - 2,396
BAMGERIREREH Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
KA EES) transferred to income statement 32 5,495 10,195
B E Interest received 1,165,156 1,296,840
BHE Interest paid (263,989) (367,929)
REtREBERBEEZHE  Cash flows from operating activities before
KEEFMSHRESRE changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,102,649 1,390,997
RE|H B RE =18 A% 288  Change in time deposits with original
TEHFEREE maturity of more than three months (8,252,857) 1,101,734
FE UL PE SR B Change in remittance receivables 99,644 (187,576)
%EH,TAIE B NHEMERE  Change in prepayments, deposits and
EE) other assets (4,722) 897
ERHAEEE) Change in loan portfolio 7,243,989 2,117,526
JEHEEIE JEfTFISZ B Change in accounts payable, accrued
BEEE expenses and other liabilities 189,979 (16,286)
R BEFHEEE Change in insurance liabilities, net (97,828) (147,090)
GNEE B b 2= KR Exchange differences (7,707) (25,063)
KESIRE Cash generated from operation 273,147 4,235,139
2 AEE Taxation paid (115,645) (167,889)
KE TS IR & 958 Net cash generated from
operating activities 157,502 4,067,250
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4B EERER consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

THAT
HK$'000

REFTHMEBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEETEE Purchase of fixed assets 25 (11,982) (22,877)
BEAHEHEES Purchase of available-for-sale securities ~ 21(a) (4,161,064) (645,167)
BERAEEIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (1,926,101) (1,743,272)
& B E B EFTS 3IA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - 230
e E | E e Disposal of a jointly controlled entity 23 137,394 -
& KB B A] i B 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FriSskIE available-for-sale securities 1,059,051 1,867,014
HeE D EREA S DHE A Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FrfS 308 held-to-maturity securities 962,170 1,508,858
BRI EFE SR E Dividend received from
available-for-sale securities 82,313 64,740
w&EE (FTR),/ s Net cash (used in)/generated from
& /55 investing activities (3,858,219) 1,029,526
BMEMNRS (RE),/ Net cash (outflows)/inflows
AR before financing (3,700,717) 5,096,776
RMETHRSRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BB E A TS RIE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 19,076,997 28,525,186
BB BITERES Redemption of debt securities issued (23,661,825) (26,707,868)
EETIRBESEN Repayment of mortgage-backed
securities issued 30 (152,465) (1,138,513)
B E Dividend paid 16 (350,000) (350,000)
wmEEE (FTA), s Net cash (used in)/generated from
&5 financing activities (5,087,293) 328,805
HePERKRELEHR Net (decrease)/increase in cash
CRLD), /B hnF5E and cash equivalents (8,788,010) 5,425,581
FUEERERESIEE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 9,986,013 4,545,074
ERUBEERERES Effect of exchange rates on cash and
EHE® cash equivalents 6,126 15,358
FRASRERRLER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 1,204,129 9,986,013

F1NE21NEFHEM FAGE

SRR —EF S ©

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. REEE

BRRBEFARABD(ARA]) REWMBAR
(il [ AR E ) s MEHmER - DIRREEL
SRR ((BEEMAE]) ROENFERE

SEA((BEUBREEL ) (BEMAER
MERNEENBERELEN(TEERBRS E
A1) - BRI EESH LR R2E)
BEARNGRE - UREB DR AEDIEAEE

RFEMBERRBELRANEPRE - WA
HHERBHRE  NAFEIRNEREELS
MEBERETESRIA)MEMRIELAR -

BT EIN - BB FR S M BImKR TR
MEZEHABRRAETERUE2ROAEF
EFrEMNER—B -

REN BBV BRELENNMBHRRE - AKX
RETEXRGHEE MERERBAKES
BERE AR TTIELHE - BRERS HERE
MOER  ARJXLATEEEVEREIBER
RS - SEMEARE -

2. EFEEFBR
2.1. FPEEVHREEL

() REZE-—-F—-—A—BBERNHER
RAERT

BERBREEAF7HR(EFTA) [
E—omEENEER] EERSRE
EREENERENERAE  WEEA
EHREREME R R AR -
REBREEROMBRRNNETE - Bk
BT EZEMEMROMWE - BHY
AEBENHBARIIERIEEERY
-,

T F A HENPRFELR
BERER  MBAKEELEATE
MEBUHREER -

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

(@) New standards and amendments effective on 1 January
2012

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — “Transfers of Financial
Assets” are intended to promote transparency in the reporting
of transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding of
the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and
the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial position. These
amendments mainly affect disclosures in the financial
statement and no material impact on the financial position or
profit and loss of the Group is expected.

There are no HKFRSs that are effective for the first time for the

financial year beginning on 1 January 2012 that have a material
impact on the Group.
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FE R EHIET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

112

(b) EEAMEERERNFHER - BRI RE
g

ATERMEAEEREEE_FT——
F—A— BB BEE M AR LR
ERINMMERT - MAKEHERBREEHRA
ARV CHIE

m BB ERE1RUERTR) [B75
BRI B e mE R A E
MEMEEWEAR - ZEFTERIR
BRBRRREAALEENTAR
BmROKME - AR TS EHFAR
mIAR  2RBRAESENA
BaH)IE B D25 - ZETEAR
—E——F+ A B BRARNSF
B - ETRRFIRERA - AEERE
AHERRIERTMEE - TRRERBEH
RAZIER] °

BEBHERELENFEIRISHT
Bl SReMEENCREBEND
58 FrEMER BB ST %R
FEI9FHAREED BN o

TREEADRAMETERR - —
BRBRATEFMENSREE 55—
BRIZBIHENATENEREE - &
BRI TR VIARER IR Z AR B
He@MTENEBERAURZT AR
BRRSREFBMETE -

FRSRAENEL - BIRE T RS
DB BEFTERNFEIHRAOER -
IENRER  HESRBERER
RNHEEEBARFERARLS A
REBHNEERRNSIBHAFESR
BEE - WARINIRNEMEEKES
M IR - BRIFEREER A
AT ©

BEVBHMELREOFARAN —F
—hF—A— B ERREFER
A ETRA R R RA o AEEIEE
ZREELNNHRE - BEEEVH
BEFIFNEMEBY - HAEED
T RN E R %R R E
E?HTIIFHEJ ©

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but
not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments relevant to the
Group have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2012 and have not been early
adopted:

m Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” changes the disclosure of items presented in
other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income. The amendment requires entities to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income
into two groups, based on whether or not they may be
recycled to profit or loss in the future. Items that will not be
recycled will be presented separately from items that may
be recycled in the future. The amendment is applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of the
amendment and intends to adopt the amendment upon its
effective date.

m HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities and replaces part of HKAS 39.

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured at fair value, and
those measured at amortised cost. The decision is made at
initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where
the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part
of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 with earlier application permitted. The
Group is considering the implications of the whole standard
including other phases of HKFRS 9 as well as the appropriate
timing of its adoption.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2012
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BR] RAAEEER B ELE
275k [ 6 KB M BHRR | MEE
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B IS s R E 3R AR B
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TERHR B ELM R AR AR BB M 75 3R
SEASREEHARBELERY
&,

m HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” replaces all of

the guidance on control and consolidation in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, and
HK(SIC)-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKAS
27 is renamed “Separate Financial Statements” and it
continues to be a standard dealing solely with separate
financial statements. The existing guidance for separate
financial statements is unchanged. The revised definition of
control under HKFRS 10 focuses on the need to have both
power and variable returns before control is considered to
be present. Power is the current ability to direct the activities
that significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and
can be positive, negative or both. The determination of
power is based on current facts and circumstances and is
continuously assessed. The standard is applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of
HKFRS 10 and intends to adopt HKFRS 10 upon its effective
date.

m HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” includes

the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The
standard is applicable to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 12 and intends to
adopt HKFRS 12 upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements” establishes a single

source of guidance under HKFRS for fair value
measurements and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how to measure fair value under HKFRSs when fair value is
required or permitted. The standard is applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of
HKFRS 13 and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 upon its effective
date.

There are no other HKFRSS or interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

EBRBBRSERAT —E——gF% 113



FE R EHIET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2.

114

HEaRE

GATERRBEARBDNEMEHBEA
ABE—_ T —F+-_A=+—HWHPKE
K o

(@) MEBAR

B AREAREEEEHEMBE LA
ERRNMAB AR (BEFRAF)  —
RABBEBZ R BB EIREE 2 B -
AHEARBELEN S —RAREK 8%
BREEEFAEATTEX A ERNE
SERNIETE - MEAR BEHEE
BEREEERAREEAFS AR LA
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December 2012.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities
(“SPE")) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not
owned by the Company. They are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, separately from equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
net profit for the period between non-controlling interest and
equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

~

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
without change of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. For purchases from the non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the jointly
controlled entity are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment |0ss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

Non interest income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate are recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate in determining interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Annual Report 2012
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2.5. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is provided internally to the key management
personnel.

(i) Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing
one or more embedded derivatives which significantly
modify the cash flows, can be designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

EBRBBRSEERAT —E——gF8% 117



FE R EHIET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

118

(b)

(©

©)

ERRERRE

B K% e WK IR R A B E oK A e RE AR K
o WERRMSHREZIFITLESRHE
E BXSEEERRINEHNER
BRERRERFOR -

REIHRE

FEIMERE A BE kA HEE &K
MEFRHNIETESHEE  BXEHE
EEEEREEARENFERS - H
AEELERBHEIHNRENEES
S0 - () WIRRNEBMA KB PTEE
ZHIR - FEREMR - TREARES
BRI E—ERISMAEIE - flnE
BT ANERARRNEZZE - 3K
WHBARBBZHEINREE - AIE(E
BERNSEROREAHEERE -

AHHERE

A SR E BRI E AU AR R &
BALMEMBERIEITES RIS
AHEERERERERARREMNK
B ARERBESTFRHME - EX
SMEZSHMLE - IHRHERENS
BAVE(BERERREEIZKA)
MR - RRRAFERE -

PrAXSEA R FEZ(EE ARSN SR
BENRKBZRDTEMNER S KA
B UAFEZ(CHABRENEREE
F R A FEER - MR HRAAIER
MRIMESH

(b) Loans and receivables

~

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and for which the Group has no intention of
trading immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
or reclassified held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an
isolated event that is beyond the Group’s control, is non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by
the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
reclassified as available-for-sale.

(d) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market
prices. They are initially recognised at fair value including direct
and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held
at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (fair value reserve), until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified to
income statement. However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement when the entity’s right
to receive payment is established.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a
financial asset, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation technigues. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would
meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the available-
for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at
the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the
reclassification date.
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2.6. Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about
the following loss events:

m significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

m a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments,

m the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

m initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation,

m the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

m observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

—adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

—economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2012



AEBEANEAEETEER  Brg
BEAZERNEBEELERE - ER
ERFEAZERNEHEE  ~AKES
ERIFHERAE AT - BEAREEE
I B E BB BB ER SR E E
(TREBREEBEXN) HIEE - B
ZEERRNEERRSEBEENES
o BB A RERME - AARERT
HETEERERERFEABREREX
RAEERDREBRZEE °

WA FBE BB AR EKATRZ E
AR EMR AT 2R R A HIRRE R
15 ABERENEEREERERR
RKBEERE (TEBERAREENRRE
EBR) BZemEERBERNX
MITREEE - BEMNIREERER
iR B MR - BRERAINKERE
R o WERIFEIRRERFBH X
AE AR EREBRNTREXAEH
BERRITERRNZE -

HERAERMEERTRAKBRSREL
REFE - AT RBREKEERRER
S R H B M d 2 A AT R EE A HO TR

ERE - Timah rl REBURE R4 -

ERZESQRENENS @ SREER
HEEERREHER  ZFHEER
RAZEEERBEZARREREAH
AR A B EREA QIER T EER
NBEPTARIHRERNEES

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. For exposures which are not individually
significant, the Group will assess impairment either individually
or collectively. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period which are
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance
for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.7.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
investment or a group of available-for-sale investments is
impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of the instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement, the
impairment loss to the extent of such change is reversed
through the income statement.

—
(¢
-~

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include
(i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP"), (i) notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and
under the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP”) and (iii) notes
issued under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN"). The
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) issued by SPE through the
US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation Programme
(“MBS Programme”) are recorded as mortgage-backed securities
issued in the statement of financial position on consolidation of
the SPEs. These notes (including MBS) are initially designated as
either (i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (i)
other financial liabilities.
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2.8.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes in fair
value being recorded in the income statement. Those notes which
are designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge are
adjusted for the fair value changes subject to the risk being
hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
received, net of transaction costs incurred. The notes are
subsequently stated at amortised costs; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the debt
securities using the effective interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or
losses, being the difference between the redemption/repurchase
amount and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes
place.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments are
recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group
purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and debt
securities issued are recognised on the trade date. Other liabilities
are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
de-recognised from the statement of financial position when and
only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.
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2.9. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from
market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation technigues, including discounted cash
flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative. Interest receivables and
payables arising from derivatives are separately presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
Statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair
value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or, (i) hedges of highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are
met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
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(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
income statement over the period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the income statement.

s
(¢
-~

Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative instrument are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.11.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for
sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the
Chief Executive Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing
mechanisms. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective segment and apportionment of management
overheads.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
Statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), which is the Company’s functional and the
Company's and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated
with the closing rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date
of initial recognition, non-monetary items in a foreign currency
that are measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale, a distinction is made between translation differences
resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

m Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

m Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions);

m All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income;
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m Exchange differences arising from the above process are
reported in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve; and

m On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
disposed of, or partially disposed of, such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company are taken to
the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years
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The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly

controlled entity, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that its interests in jointly controlled
entity are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether
there has been any significant adverse changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
jointly controlled entity operates or whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there is
an indication that an interest in an associate or jointly controlled
entity is impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the
amount by which the carrying amount is lower than the higher of
the investment’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Any
reversal of such impairment loss in subsequent periods is reversed
through income statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required
upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the subsidiary in the Company's statement of financial
position exceeds the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net
assets including goodwill in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Annual Report 2012
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from investment in the subsidiary,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to other comprehensive income, is also credited
or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with
the deferred gain or loss.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity
leave are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created constructive obligations.

EBRBEBREERAT —2——gF8% 131



FE R EHIET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

©

(d)

RBINEEE

AEBRREE R BHMEAESTEIR
REHRKE - AHEEREEERE RS
MERAMERZESRE - ZFE
TR EBTHERRAREMR -

REB R HIERNTE A B RS E IR
SRR AR EERFES L - BER
EHEAERGREI MR D ZEIm
BOLUEY R = HRE Y AR HRETE B
AR EE o

RUEFzE

R IE VR K B BRI AR LR R RAR - =X
fiife 845 B FEBEBUR I AN & - AlAR
Bl AR LRSS - i A2 AR RE AR IR
BRI RE A ERFEA BRI E
RIREEE - S AEE BB MR f
AR ERES - BIRERAR LRS- RE2
BRRREET —EAZHONE ST
REBE -

2.18. & {&

i 75 6% B 3R B RB 1 =14 1 08 BoR R sk e
EEME METEERAELARBER
ARSI EE AR - ATEREE -

132

BRERAHENEERTHREHATL
E(RRERTSHE TR EZEREREE
LR G A EZREFE -

(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer
contributions being forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to full vesting of the employer contributions.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period date are
discounted to present value.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
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2.19.Leases

(@) Operating leases

~

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. The Group entered into operating leases
primarily as lessee. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The
Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor. Finance
leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a
constant periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts
having the characteristics of a finance lease are accounted for
in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment allowances
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 2.6.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

EBRBBREERAT —E——gF% 133



FE R EHIET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.21.

2.22.

134

MEBREEH

REMBEFRELH  AREARKAAX
1 E B ARR AR B 1 E R XA RBEIRETS
TAGRINBERIBREEERX

MBRERDTEELERE BN FER
B MKRER - MFTHERIK - AEEIRE
ERERNAEENRBREE G EREI7
B IRBERIAREE BEENE
BRN P HRASEREERRTEHOK
=EE - MBERABEEZEMES
RIS REZHE

BARBBTNRIBESZNREE(FLE
& ERBFIER /IZIBEFER - LR
FBETEAFE IR - AR A MBS
AR - FIIR S FEIER o

Hib B IER A K - RMEE22200) FRENE
AR - SR ARBAL o

RiFIHIBREL
(a) BBREEY

AEEZRBARBREE THIZRBRIRE
% RIBFEGTEEAR - KRFE
BETRIPE  AEEIZARRKI A 5
BRELBYE - BEAG A FEMNRR
X - ARFEBREERE LM
HEVERER] °

ERBEASTFRBBAECRITER
BT EZZ R HBLEERARE
BORE - MBEFIMRNERERER
BREBARXNBRERE - NEEE
WEBRERERERE - RIREFHR
TA R B A CHA ) 2 B ] L 1) B3R B MK
A °

2.21.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued by the Company for the timely repayment of guaranteed
MBS are recorded as financial guarantees under HKAS 39 in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for on the
annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting
approach, the Group makes provisions based on credible
estimates of future income and outgoings to determine the
underwriting result for the current accounting period. The
underwriting result includes any adjustments arising from the
correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through
Authorized Institutions (“Als”) as defined in accordance with
the Banking Ordinance during an accounting period. The gross
premiums after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk
premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net
premiums are recognised as income on a time-apportioned
basis during the time the insurance coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums
written which are estimated to relate to risks and services
subsequent to the end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred
but not reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting
period. For risk-sharing business, 50% or 75% of the net risk
premiums earned in a year depending on the respective
product is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a period of
time in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess claims at
any time during the period. At the end of the reporting period,
the unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve can be
released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the
Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated
for losses on one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable from
reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to
reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are primarily premiums for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense.

Commissions are recognised in the income statement as
incurred.

(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan facilities
provided to eligible small and medium-sized enterprises and
non-listed enterprises (SMES), in return for guarantee fee, and
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage provided to elderly
people, in return for insurance premium.
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The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of future
cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment shows
that the carrying amount of its guarantee and insurance
liabilities are inadequate in the light of the estimated future
cash flows, the shortfall shall be recognised in the income
Statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the insurance
premium earned in a year is set aside as a Contingency
Reserve for a period of time in accordance with relevant
regulatory guidelines and as considered by directors to be
appropriate. Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can
be made to meet excess claims at any time during the period.
At the end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to general reserve.

2.23.Dividend distribution

3.1.

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting
period is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’
equity and as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by shareholders.

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios of
mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of assets
through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage loans originated by
such Als and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong; (iv)
to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in respect of loans
originated by such Als to SMEs in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; and (vi) to operate a
centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance loans.
By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the
use of financial instruments including cash, loans, debts and
derivatives.
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3.2.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group'’s financial performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters
including financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits
for various risks are monitored and reviewed regularly by various
management committees, including the Credit Committee, Asset
and Liability Committee (“ALCQ"), Transaction Approval Committee
(“TAC") and Operational Risk Committee (“ORC") which report to
Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The ALCO oversees
the implementation of market risk management and investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts
an in-depth analysis of pricing economics and associated credit
risks for business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved by the
Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all business
entities and line functions maintain an effective operational risk
and internal control framework. The ORC is also responsible for
providing directions and resolving issues related to policies,
controls and management of operational issues referred to by line
functions, as well as ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective
action in response to audit findings related to operational risks or
internal controls. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control
environment. The most important types of risks are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk
on liquid funds and investment securities is limited because the
credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.
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The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided
for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting
period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market
could result in losses that are different from those provided for at
the end of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent
policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt prudent
asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility criteria, (iii)
conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv) ensure adequate
protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are spread
over a large number of customers and counterparties. The
underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage exposures are
located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans
and take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with
borrowers in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment
assessment is performed regularly and impairment allowance is
charged to income statement in accordance with the guidelines
approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly consist
of properties and the deferred consideration (Note 27). For finance
lease receivable, the collateral types include taxi and public light
bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio and finance lease receivable are
generally fully secured by collateral. The current collateral value of
properties is determined with the use of public indices on a
portfolio basis.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with banks
as the exposures are considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties and short term maturity. Investment
securities are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-
backed securities which are secured by properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in
accordance with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of
the Group. These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular
review by the Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any
one time, the amount subject to counterparty risk is limited to the
current fair value of instruments favourable to the Group (i.e.
assets with positive fair value), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits with
counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and insurance
contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.
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HERBFENEMURE  BHIBAE Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
SR WEHBWEEERS  BHIBRAN securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
BR e BRRERNEBEREME—HBHEN corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
ERSGELENFAZ#ERRNERE  HE settlement limits are established for each counterparty to cover
BRGEHFHREEREERE - the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market

transactions on any single day.

(@) ReTPTIE AT M EMEE L PR (@) Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of

BN sSEERBANOT collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

REBMATSREAESSEERKE The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial assets of

HIEESEEZ - BEABRINSS the Group and the Company are equal to their carrying

EERBRAFMT - amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of off-balance

sheet exposures are as follows:

KEE b N
The Group The Company
R-EBE-—-F RZZ 7
+=A=+—H
As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FTET FAL FTEx TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ISR Financial guarantees
(IIBEH 2 (contractual amount
HELesE) under the MBS
programme) - - 214,742 367,252
AR BRIR Total risk-in-force
— RIBRBRER — mortgage insurance
business 16,614,898 16,624,427 17,101,150 17,401,041
—HERR — other guarantee and
N ES S insurance business 1,152,296 874,638 1,152,296 874,638

17,767,194 17,499,065 18,468,188 18,642,931
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b) EFHEENEEEZINAT (b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

rEE LN
The Group The Company
R=FB-Z=F R-F——F R=F-=F KT —F
t=A=t-8B +=ZA=+—-A t+=A=t+-B +-A=1-H

As at AS at As at AS at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011

FEx FHT FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REENARRE Neither past due

nor impaired 25,518,011 32,706,938 21,607,824 27,605,741
BB ARRE Past due but not impaired 379,243 431,579 337,812 403,239
ERE Impaired 2,197 4,923 2,197 4,923
EHBAEE Gross loan portfolio 25,899,451 33,143,440 21,947,833 28,013,903
EXRERE Allowance for
loan impairment (4,052) (7,622) (4,030) (7,478)
25,895,399 33,135,818 21,943,803 28,006,425
REFBARKGBHNKRENERAE The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor
HEEE X  AI2EASERM AL impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed
TR R AT TR © by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the
Group.

AEE PN
The Group The Company
R=B-=F RZFT——F R=B-=F RKRZT—F
t=A=t-A +=ZA=t—-8 +=A=+-B t+t=A=1+-H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FHT TERT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Sl Grades:
1238 1103 25,500,399 32,693,002 21,595,505 27,591,895
A% 4 - - - -
54 5 17,612 13,936 12,319 13,846

25,518,011 32,706,938 21,607,824 27,605,741
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12 3R B IEEEE R e ool B & 8 2 Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no
BIGENER  WEETEKENE recent past due history, and with different levels of credit
B nsaiEiG - RIFBIERERRS enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security for
B A A TN & 4 FE YR 510 HE R mortgage portfolio and finance lease receivable.

ﬁ:l'] °
AR BFEITER A A AR SR EC SRR B K Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history and with
ARG N EKTFEE B L HE N5 1 i different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the
REBIERERRIEER feﬁ/\fﬂrﬂﬁﬁ collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio and finance
K FEWIR R A G o lease receivable.
SR B IED B B AR R SR B 5K Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history and with
WA EREREBEZESTIREAMR collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio and finance
K FEUIIR FRAYHE F R © lease receivable.

(c) BEIERRENER (c) Loans past due but not impaired
T AEREHRPAREEBHERRENE The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were
AR - past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

PN
The Company
RZZE——F RIB-ZF
+-A=+t—-H +=A=+-H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEx THAT TET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EARS ] Past due:

=AAZKNAT Three months or less 376,078 429,889 334,647 401,687

NEAEAT Six months or less but
BRB=1EA4 over three months 561 1,174 561 1,036
a7~ E A Over six months 2,604 516 2,604 516
k] Total 379,243 431,579 337,812 403,239

HA MG REM  Of which fair value of
EEZHEmsaE R  collateral and other
AT E credit enhancement 2,531,140 2,357,591 2,429,776 2,269,314
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(@)

Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement amounted to HK$2,197,000 (2011:
HK$4,923,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company for individually impaired loans
amounted to HK$8,175,000 (2011: HK$13,985,000).

Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only place deposits with note-
issuing banks or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s), P-2
(Moody’s) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with a
certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.

EBRBBREERAT —E——gF% 143



B BT R FKizE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIEINER (= B /S E AR 5 0k (I The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by
R BEkFE) TIREHMBARE rating designation as at the end of the reporting period, based
T BB E BB HFTEDT o 1F3 on external credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor's,
KRERBE - AIRAFESH T ARG Moody's and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings,
o the ratings for the issuers are reported.
BEZ
AHHERS )R
REBRAAT Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity k]
R=B-—f+=H=+-H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company THER TER TET
As at 31 December 2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Ada AAA/Aaa 952,959 2,396,837 3,349,796
AA-Z AA+/AA3 2 Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aal 1,256,388 5,280,188 6,536,576
A-EA+/A3ZEAT A-t0 A+/A3t0 A1 284,983 1,560,783 1,845,766
k) Total 2,494,330 9,237,808 11,732,138
HEZE
AHHEES F|ERE S
AEERARA Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity Fk]
RZE——F+ZA=1+—H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FTAET FAT TAEL
As at 31 December 2011 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Ada AAA/Aaa - 2,403,398 2,403,398
AA- Z AA+/AA3 E Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aal 294,299 5,082,178 5,376,477
A-ZEA+/A3E AT A-10 A+/A3t0 A1 = 783,572 783,572
k] Total 294,299 8,269,148 8,563,447
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk
primarily arise from the interest rate management of the entity’s
financial instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from
the net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its existing
interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance using fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swaps by swapping into
floating-rate funding to better match the floating-rate assets. The
Group also hedges the net exposure of the foreign-currency
denominated debts issued and the overseas residential mortgage
loans by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and
economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings
are held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets
and the asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is
responsible for monitoring financial market movements and
executing transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in
accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle
office monitors the compliance of risk limits and performs stress
tests to assess the potential size of losses that could arise in
extreme conditions. The results of the stress tests are reviewed by
ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of
the interest rate curve as at 31 December 2012 would increase the
future net interest income for the next 12 months by around HK$1
million (2011: decrease by around HK$4 million) and decrease by
around HK$1 million (2011: increase by around HK$4 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2012, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit for
the year would have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2011:
lower by less than HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would
have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2011: HK$1 million) as
at 31 December 2012. If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis
points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would have been
lower by less than HK$1 million (2011: higher by less than HK$2
million) and the fair value reserve would have been lower by less
than HK$1 million (2011: HK$1 million).

As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit for the year would have been around HK$11
million higher (2011: HK$8 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit for the year would have been around HK$11 million lower
(2011: HK$8 million).
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As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$18 million higher (2011: HK$8 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit for the
year would have been around HK$18 million lower (2011: HK$8
million).

As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$33 million lower (2011: HK$20 million). Conversely, if
the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had increased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$33 million higher (2011: HK$20 million).

The increase or decrease represents management's assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rate, exchange rates
and market price for a 12-month period.
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(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial
position and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies
for investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

TR AEBNINEEZE R - KA
PRl mARBIZIREENENEEERR

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the

& WREBEED

iy |
The Group

8o

Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised

by currency.

HK$'000

e
usb
TRT
HK$'000

Hihek
Other foreign
currencies
THL
HK$'000

okl
Total
TET
HK$'000

R-E-Z% As at 31 December 2012

+=B=+-—H
BE Assets
BekhEfise Cash and short-term funds 8,424,927 746,380 544,237 9,715,544
JEMRFI 8 T B 3R Interest and remittance

receivables 278,110 157,079 34,401 469,590

THESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
EFBAFER Loan portfolio, net 21,540,141 4,355,258 - 25,895,399
BHEE Investment securities:

—AfHE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827

—FEZIEH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
BHE ek Prepayments, deposits and

HipBE other assets 39,601 - 40 39,641
EEEE Fixed assets 29,116 - 12 29,128
BRREE Reinsurance assets 222,007 - - 222,007
BELE Total assets 36,939,593 13,674,626 2,250,738 52,864,957
8 Liabilities
FERFI 2 Interest payable 128,050 82,926 24,780 235,756
IR - FEff B Accounts payable, accrued

REMERE expenses and other liabilities 4,463,882 716 518 4,465,116
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
EHNEERE Current income tax liabilities 101,464 - 123 101,587
ERRBEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 109,404 - - 109,404
RBRERE Insurance liabilities 1,545,863 - - 1,545,863
BETEBES Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946,117 36,404,627
BRETREES Mortgage-backed

securities issued 214,672 - - 214,672

BELER Total liabilities 24,468,615 10,811,967 7,971,538 43,252,120
BERE Net position 12,470,978 2,862,659 (5,720,800) 9,612,837
BEBERINELSE  Off-balance sheet net

Bat notional position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)

tBEABRINFREFZREINEISTESRT #  Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
B (XERNREREBRERKBEER) the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
MEESBEANTENERE - which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements and their fair values.
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Rt shes

BT Other foreign Eot ]
HKD currencies Total
AN TR ; THER THEL
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B--f As at 31 December 2012
+=R=+-H
BE Assets
ReRkEHES Cash and short-term funds 8,421,586 746,380 420,377 9,588,343
JEMRHI S T B 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 269,647 157,079 33,689 460,415
THESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
EXRAFE Loan portfolio, net 17,588,545 4,355,258 - 21,943,803
BHRE Investment securities:
—A#HHE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827
—RFEZIE — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
MBRRRE Interests in subsidiaries 3,841,609 - 102,060 3,943,669
BEFE  &ek Prepayments, deposits and
Hin & other assets 46,520 - - 46,520
TEE Fixed assets 29,116 - - 29,116
BREREE Reinsurance assets 222,372 - - 222,372
BESE Total assets 36,825,086 13,674,626 2,228,174 52,727,886
aE Liabilities
e R B Interest payable 127,980 82,926 24,780 235,686
FERTIRS: - FERTRASZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMERE expenses and other liabilities 4,686,763 716 250 4,687,729
TESmMIEA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
EHHIBAR Current income tax liabilities 100,563 - - 100,563
ERRBEARE Deferred income tax liabilities 109,103 - - 109,103
RigEE Insurance liabilities 1,548,076 - - 1,548,076
BRTEEESR Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946,117 36,404,627
BEERE Total liabilities 24,477,765 10,811,967 7,971,147 43,260,879
HEFE Net position 12,347,321 2,862,659 (5,742,973) 9,467,007

BEBRERINEGE  Off-balance shest net

Bet notional position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)
t BEABRINFRRFRIEINEITESRT #  Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between

A (EZRUREARRBAREE KB HER) the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,

MEZESBEANTENZRE - which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency

movements and their fair values.
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N
The Group

BT eI

HKD usD
TAT TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000

Hiohg
Other foreign
currencies
THL
HK$'000

kA
Total
THL
HK$'000

RZ_F——F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=t+-8
BE Assets
RehEHE: Cash and short-term funds 9,622,880 353,189 269,096 10,245,165
FEMRFI S T 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 416,287 167,110 7,601 590,998
fTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
EA T Loan portfolio, net 25,997,927 7,137,891 - 33,135,818
BARRE Investment securities:
—AfEHE — available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 = 2,303,703
—BAEZHH — held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
HREZHERRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,045 130,045
BNHE ZER Prepayments, deposits and
HihEE other assets 27,057 - 40 27,097
EEEE Fixed assets 30,949 = 325 31,274
BRREE Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
BEZE Total assets 41,749,478 13,757,274 994,594 56,501,346
BE Liabilities
ERFE Interest payable 136,126 95,541 5,577 237,244
ERIRS: - ENFIZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,271,207 1,958 1,718 4,274,883
fTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
EHTEARE Current income tax liabilities 134,785 - - 134,785
ELHEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 - - 52,672
RiREE Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 = = 1,630,595
BETEEES Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
BETIRIEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 367,137 - - 367,137
BERE Total liabilities 29.876,276 15,319,068 2,738,761 47,934,105
FRFE Net position 11,873,202 (1,561,794) (1,744,167) 8,567,241
BEAGBRINESE  Offbalance sheet net
BAE! notional position* (10,441,252 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251
t BEABRINFERRFREINETESRT # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between

A (X2ANHEREER SRR ER)
MAESHELNTENESR

the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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Hip ok
Other foreign fak]
currencies Total

BT eI

HKD UND)

AR THL AL THL THL
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZ_F——F As at 31 December 2011

+-A=t-8
BE Assets
RehEHEe Cash and short-term funds 9,620,528 353,189 148,130 10,121,847
JEMRI S T 3R Interest and remittance

receivables 403,959 167,110 7,001 578,070

TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
EXRAFE Loan portfolio, net 20,868,534 7,137,891 - 28,006,425
BHRE Investment securities:

—AHRHE — available-for-sale 648,384 1,654,819 = 2,303,703

—BAEZIH — held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
MBRRRE Interests in subsidiaries 4,884,648 - 102,060 4,986,708
HEAZHERRE Investment in a jointly

controlled entity - - 120,554 120,554

BEFE Bek Prepayments, deposits and

HipBE other assets 188,787 = = 188,787
EEEE Fixed assets 30,949 - = 30,949
BREEE Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
BESE Total assets 41,651,783 13,757,274 965,232 56,374,289
B Liabilities
FERTFI 2 Interest payable 136,010 95,541 5,577 237,128
FERTIRS: - FERTRASZ  Accounts payable, accrued

LEMBE expenses and other liabilities 4,630,568 1,958 1,478 4,634,004
fTEemMIA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
EHFEEE Current income tax liabilities 135,131 - - 135,131
ELHEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,696 - - 52,696
RIREE Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 = = 1,630,595
BETELES Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
BELE Total liabilities 29,868,754 15,319,068 2,738,521 47,926,343
BEEE Net position 11,783,029 (1,561,794) (1,773,289) 8,447,946
BEAGBRINELE  Off-balance sheet net

#et notional position* (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

BEABRRINFRERFAEINEITEASET
A (ZERANREARBAREBEREHERR)
MAZECHELNTENER

Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on exposure
to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest
margins may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected
movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the level of interest
rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which is monitored
regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group's exposure to interest rate movements,
are included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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r5E
The Group

—BAR

Upto
1 month
TR
HK$'000

fBARE
Z=f8A
Over

1 month to
3 months
TiEn
HK$'000

=@EANL
£
Over 3
months to
1 year
Fax
HK$'000

—FLE
ZhE
over

1 year to
5 years
THT
HK$'000

BENE
over

5 years
THER
HK$'000

Fits
Non-
interest
bearing
TET
HK$'000

L
Total
TRR
HKS$'000

R-B——F As at 31 December 2012
+=A=+-H
EE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 1,011,878 3,528,751 4,989,854 - - 185,061 9,715,544
FEUF B R B 51 Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 469,590 469,590
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443,013 1,443,013
ERAAFE Loan portfolio, net 24,657,088 1,169,067 36,512 23,996 8,736 - 25,895,399
BHERE - Investment securities:
—AfHE — available-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827
—RHBEEEH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38,739 1,552,207 3,759,570 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BAHE - &Ze R Prepayments, deposits and
HihBE other assets - - - - - 39,641 39,641
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 29,128 29,128
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222,007 222,007
AEBE Total assets 26,661,546 5,709,674 7,231,726 3,783,566 3,771,508 5,706,937 52,864,957
aff Liabilities
FERFIS Interest payable - - - - - 235756 235,756
FEfTIREN - FEftFAsz  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,200,129 - - - - 264,987 4,465,116
TESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
EHEEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 101,587 101,587
EIEHIBRE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,404 109,404
RIBAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,545,863 1,545,863
BRITERES Debt securities issued 5,973,185 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
BRTIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 214,672 - - - - - 214,672
livits Total liabilities 10,387,986 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2,432,692 43,252,120
FISGUXEROME  Total interest
sensitivity gap* 16,273,560  (6,414,848) 5,095,693 (8,373,552)  (242,261)
FIEFTETAR Interest rate derivatives
(BEFENER (notional amounts of
£8) net position) (8,064,538) (8,973,851) 2,119,000 11,610,162 3,280,324
* REATESRTASTEYWERITEKE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

FHIRE - securities issued.
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—BAKE =@ARE —FHE

Z=f@A - ERE TEtE
—BAR over over 3 Over HFEHNE Non-
Upto 1monthto monthsto  1yearto over interest okl
1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
b NG| TR TR THET T THL TR T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B-——F As at 31 December 2012
+=A=+-H
EE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 899,615 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - 183,807 9,588,343
JEUF B K B 51 Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 460,415 460,415
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443,013 1,443,013
EREeFE Loan portfolio, net 20,713,162 1,169,067 35,680 18,871 7,023 - 21,943,803
BHRE - Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827
—BEZIH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38,739 1,552,207 3,759,570 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
HEARERE Interests in subsidiaries 3,838,132 - 810 - 1,667 103,060 3,943,669
BRHE - & Prepayments, deposits and
REMWEE other assets 7,984 - - - - 38,536 46,520
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 29,116 29,116
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222372 222,372
BAEHE Total assets 26,451,473 5,695,990 7,231,704 3,778,441 3,771,462 5,798,816 52,727,886
% Liabilities
FERF 8 Interest payable - - - - - 235,686 235,686
FERIRR « FELT Accounts payable, accrued
A kEMERE expenses and other liabilities 4,410,603 - - - - 277,126 4,687,729
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
BHHBEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 100,563 100,563
EEHERE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,103 109,103
RBERE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 1548076 1,548,076
BETESLES Debt securities issued 5,973,185 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
AEEE Total liabilities 10,383,788 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2,445,649 43,260,879
FEgRERD Total interest sensitivity gap*
B * 16,067,685 (6,428,532) 5,095,671 (8,378,677)  (242,307)
FIRFTETA Interest rate derivatives
(BRFaEngx (notional amounts of net
&8) position) (8,064,538) (8,973,851) 2,119,000 11,610,162 3,280,324
* RAATESRIASEEHBERITERE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
FRRE o securities issued.
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—fEAR
Upto

1 month
AT
HK$'000
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THT
HK$'000
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HK$'000

—ERE
ZARF
Over
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5 years
FAT
HK$'000

1year
FHT

AEE
Qover

5 years
FAT
HK$'000

B
Non-
interest
bearing
FTET
HK$'000

ekl
Total
THT
HK$'000

RZZ——% As at 31 December 2011

+=-A=1+-8
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 8,487,923 1,715,112 - - - 42130 10,245,165
FEUF B R B 5K Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 590,998 590,998
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1559187 1,559,187
BN TS Loan portfolio, net 30,645025 2,388,984 63,331 24,971 13,507 - 33135818
BHRE - Investment securities:

—AftHE — available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703

—BEZEH — held-to-maturity = 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
HREEHEREE Investment in a jointly controlled

entity - - - - - 130,045 130,045

B7E - e R Prepayments, deposits and

Hih&E other assets - - - - - 27,097 27,097
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 31,274 31,274
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
EELE Total assets 39,132,948 4,542,737 835,348 3,903,989 3,487,278 4,599,046 56,501,346
afE Liabilities
JERFIE Interest payable - - - - - 237,244 237,244
FERTIRFR - FERTRIY  Accounts payable, accrued

REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,182,266 - - - - 92617 4,274,883
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
EHREEE Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 134,785 134,785
EIEHERE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,672 52,672
R EE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRITEBES Debt securities issued 10803727 4203815  7,289711 13867908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
BRTIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 367,137 - - - - - 367,137
BfEREE Total liabilities 15,353,130 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,495 47,934,105
FIESREROMAEE*  Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,779,818 338922 (6,454363)  (9.963919)  (1444,768)
FIRFTETA Interest rate derivatives (notional

(BAFEN%%E%E) amounts of net position) (12,242308) (12,365112) 7,256,541 13326420 4,122,710

* RFEAPTESR T ASE BYHE BITERKE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

FHFE o

securities issued.
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=EARE  —FALE

E—F FRE B
—fEAR Over Over3 Over  AFLAE Non-
Upto 1monthto  monthsto 1 year to Over interest )
1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years bearing Total
YN FTET THT FTHT FTHT THT FTET THT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B—%& As at 31 December 2011
+-A=1+-H
B Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 8,404,644 1,675,625 - - - 41578 10,121,847
JEUF S K B 51 Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 578,070 578,070
TESBTAE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1559187 1,559,187
EREeFE Loan portfolio, net 25,520,147 2,388,984 63,331 24,102 9,861 - 28006425
BHRE - Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
—HEEIH — held-to-maturity = 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
EARRE Interests in subsidiaries 4,879,202 - - 856 3,590 103,060 4,986,708
LREEHERERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
BB - BE K Prepayments, deposits and
HihgE other assets 187,313 - - - - 1,474 188,787
BFEE Fixed assets - - - - - 30,949 30,949
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
BEBE Total assets 38,991,306 4,503,250 835,348 3,903,976 3,487,222 4,653,187 56,374,289
afE Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 237,128 237,128
FERTIRFR - FEfRIX  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,541,195 - - - - 92,809 4,634,004
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
EHREAE Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 135,131 135,131
FEEFIEARE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,696 52,696
Rig&E Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRETERES Debt securities issued 10,803,727 4,203,815 7289711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
afEEE Total liabilities 15,344,922 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287941 47,926,343
FISSREROMAE*  Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,646,384 299435  (6,454,363)  (9,963932)  (1,444,824)
FIRFTETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BAFEN4%4%E) amounts of net position) (12,242308) (12,365112) 7,256,541 13326420 4,122,710
* REAPTESRITASE BUE BITERE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
FHIFE o securities issued.
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ENE & B 3.4.

nBEERBEAREREEEEINE
A RER/EEAHBENERREHESH
Bk AEESREAESRARRL -
WA TRAZ MR A0 EFEH
BEeRARRE - REEETRE SRR
XRFEXBERREFHENAEES -
BERBEEEZEEEMURBDESHIR
EITESE -

(@) RIFRBREREDM

TRIFAEER2HARZREBRED
FHRBEIFTESHAE  WFEEE
HBENTESRABNARBRELESE
MITESRTANRSRE - RAWE
MEBR/BRENRTRRERE - &
EREBERFOAEAOIHBEFAENR
EMBEXNFIEA - ARENITETASR
BRFREEGE NN iz A M RE
BEEGEENE KL -

() EOTER SR

PN ]
The Group

R=Z2—--F+=-H=+—H Asat 31 December 2012

=L Liabilities

BRITRRE S Debt securities issued

BB TIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to
repay its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of
loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows
and outflows of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term
inflows and outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The
Group has established diversified funding sources to support the
growth of its business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio
of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(a) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by the Group
under non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities that will be settled on a net basis and derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on gross basis by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting
period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future interest
payments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual
maturity. The Group's derivatives include interest rate swaps
that will be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that
will be settled on gross basis.

(i) Non-derivative cash outflows
—@AUE =Z@EANL —FHE

Z=f4A Z-F ZRE
—EAR over Over Over RELE

Upto 1monthto 3 months  1yearto Over kel
1month 3 months  to 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TR TR TR TR TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(684,799) (3,590,319) (11,609,866) (18,389,744) (3,749,700) (38,024,428)

(4,284)  (210,656) - - - (214,940)

(689,083) (3,800,975) (11,609,866) (18,389,744) (3,749,700) (38,239,368)
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VNG|
The Company

R-ZB-=f
+=B=+-H

af

BRTERES

—fEAR

Up to
1 month
TR
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2012

Liabilities

Debt securities issued (684,799)

—fEANE
Z=fiA
Over

1 month to
3 months
TR
HK$'000

(3,590,319) (11,609,866) (18,389,744)

=EANUL
2-F
over

3 months
to 1 year
TR
HK$'000

—E)t
Z1F
over

1 year to
5 years
TEx
HK$'000

BENUL
over HE
5 years Total
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

(3,749,700) (38,024,428)

—@AR
Upto
1 month

—@ANUE
Z={AA
Over

1 month to
3months

PAE
2—F
QOver

3 months
to 1 year

—FNUE
EhEF
Over AERE
1 year to Qver
5 years 5 years

AEE THL TAL TAL FTAEL TAL THL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—%F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—A

afE Liabilities
BETERES Debt securities issued (3,693567)  (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131)  (4,789,991)  (43,134,131)
BETRIBES Mortgage-backed securities

issued (8,373) (15,481) (130,367) (215,381) - (369,602)

(3,701,940)  (1,043,075) (12,403215)  (21,565,512)  (4,789,991)  (43,503,733)

AR
The Company

R-ZT——F
+-A=t+-H
B

BB TEBES

—fEHAR
Upto

1 month
T
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2011

Liabilities

Debt securities issued (3,693,567)

—EANUE
Z={EA
Over

1 month to
3months
THT
HK$'000

(1,027,594)

=EANRLE

Qver

3 months
to 1year
THET
HK$'000

(12,272,848)

—FME

E0f
Over  RFEME
1year to Over
5years 5years
FHL FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(21,350,131)  (4,789,991)  (43,134,131)
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(i) FTEBRERAGRE) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

ZEARE  —FH0E
E-F ZhF

—fBAR Over over HENE
Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over ot
1month  3months  to 1year 5 years 5 years Total
AEERAAH THET TR TR T#x THEx TR
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RN-B-——F As at 31 December 2012
t=A=+-H
BT EEEER Derivative financial instrument
TESRMIA : settled:
— R — on net basis 27,539 89,976 242,823 890,511 222,328 1,473,177
—BEEE — on gross basis
piofusrt:ct Total outflow (1,341,924) (2,539,994) (7,471,516) (9,979,682) - (21,333,116)
MALE Total inflow 1,351,759 2,585,725 7,567,155 10,312,326 - 21,816,965

37,374 135,707 338,462 1,223,155 222,328 1,957,026

ZEARE  —FNE

ZRE
—EAA Over Over  AFME
Upto  1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over kel
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
AEBRANT THT TR FHEL T THT THT
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZT——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
BT RELEER) Derivative financial instrument
THEERTIA - settled:
— R — on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
—REEE — 0N gross basis
ittt Total outflow (821,675)  (1,726,619)  (4,320,424)  (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
MABE Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
(i EEAERINEE (ili) Off-balance sheet items
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H' ' & Financial guarantees of the Company as at 31 December
ARl —F AR BB ERERE 2012 amounting to HK$214,742,000 (2011: HK$152,510,000)
214,742,000% 7m( = & — — F: matures no later than one year.

152,510,000 7T) °
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(b) B A D47

TRIEEZRARE

BRPIH AR

RO B2 EERBBED

(b) Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group's assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date.

—fEst =Z@EARE  —FHE

HEEE Z=fiA E-& ik
Repayable —f@AR& Over Over Over EHEHNE
on Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over ERY kol

demand  1month 3months to1year  5years  5years  Undated Total
r5E Thx Thn Thx Thx Thn Thx T#n T#n
The Group HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
R-Z--%#+-f=+-R0 Asat31December 2012
EE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 185,886 1,011,053 3,528,751 4,989,854 - - - 9,715,544
6 Loan portfolio 7530 560,714 400,245 2,365,120 11,967,442 10,595,458 2,942 25,899,451
FEHRE Investment secuities
—WiE — available-for-sale - 868,060 678912 947,358 - - 3318497 5812827
—HAZIH — held-to-maturity - 124520 - 1575497 3,775,019 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 222007 222,007

193,416 2,564,347 4,607,908 9,877,829 15,742,461 14,358,230 3,543,446 50,887,637
a8 Liabilities
RRAaRE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1545863 1,545,863
BRTERES Debt securities isstied - 642,467 3423461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
BRTHREES Mortgage-backed securities issued - 4,198 210,474 - - - - 214,672

- 646,665 3,633,935 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 1,545,863 38,165,162

—fEnE Z@EARE  -FHE

BE2IE Z=fiA B-f ZHE
Repayable —f@R®& Over Over Over E&EHE
on Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over BRE g

demand 1month 3months  to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
YN Tix THT TER TiEx THx TET TEr Tir
The Company HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
M=Z--#£+-A=+-H Asat31December 2012
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 180,602 902,820 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - - 9,588,343
EEa Loan portfolio 7,038 546,386 370,268 2,229,903 11,224,860 7,566,496 2,882 21,947,833
BFHRE Investment securities
—mitihe — available-for-sale - 868,060 678912 947,358 - - 3,318,497 5812827
—REEHH — held-to-maturity - 12452 - 1575497 3775019 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 222372 222,372

187,640 2,441,786 4,564,247 9,742,612 14,999,879 11,329,268 3,543,751 46,809,183
8 Liabilities
EthERTIE Other payable - 12,318 198,156 - - - - 210474
RBAR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,548,076 1,548,076
BETERES Debt securities issted - 642,467 3,423,461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627

- 654785 3,621,617 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 1,548,076 38,163,177
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s
Repayable  —fEAA Qver BENE

on Upto Tmonthto  3months  1yearto QOver ERH
demand Imonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5years Undated Total
7 ST THT T BT TAT THL T T
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i

W=E——%+-F=1—H Asat31December 2011

AE Assets
ReREHEs Cash and short-term funds 43499 8486554 1,715,112 - - - - 10,245,165
EFARA Loan portfolio 5775 570,055 590,720 2895741 15274291 13,801,375 5483 33143440
EHkE Investment securities
— e — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2009404 2303703
—REEIH — held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772016 3930126 3473771 - 8269148
HBRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208911 208911
09274 9,056,609 239,067 3,667,757 19498716 17275146 2223798 54,170,367
A& Liabilities
RRaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 163059 1630595
BRETERES Debt securities issued - 3636717 890,024 11268017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
BRETIREES Mortgage-backed securities issued - 8,207 14805 129453 214,672 - - 37137

- 364492 904829 11397470 20585075 4,932,046 1630595 43,094,939

= —FUE
il Z ' EiES
Repayable  —fEAM Over  BENE

on Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto QOver ERH

demand Imonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5years Undated

VNG T ThT Thx BT T THT Thx
The Company HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

M=E——%+-F=1—H8 Asat31December 2011

BE Assets
ReREHes Cash and short-term funds 38642 8407580 1,675,625 - - - - 10,121,847
i Loan portfolio 5435 524961 542277 2687505 14313731 9934541 5453 28013903
BHRE Investment securities
—WfE — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2009404 2303703
—HEEHH — held-to-maturity - - 93235 772016 3930126 3473771 - 8269148
BRBAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 20891 208,911
44077 8932541 2311137 3459521 18538156 13408312 2223768 48917512
BE Liabilities
EthEf0R Other payable - 7,074 15,691 59666 276498 - - 358929
RRaRE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 163059 1630595
BRTERES Debt securities issued - 3636717 890,024 11268017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207

- 3643791 905715 11,327,683 20646901 4932046 1,630,595 43,086,731
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance receivables,
prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts
payable, accrued expenses and current income tax liabilities
are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months
from the reporting date. Other assets and liabilities included in
the statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve months after
the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to providing the
Group with a HK$30 billion revolving credit under the Revolving
Credit Facility. The Facility enables the Group to maintain
smooth operation under exceptional circumstances, so that it
can better fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit losses of
up to 25%-30% of the property value of a residential mortgage
loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90% at origination, or other
thresholds as specified from time to time. The Group also provides
financial guarantee cover to Als up to 50%-70% of the banking
facilities granted to SMES in Hong Kong and insurance cover to Als
in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by such Als and
secured on residential properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this
risk is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk
that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the
actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of
claims are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary
from year to year from the estimate established using statistical
techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of
the key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy, a
slump in the local property market and a low mortality rate of
borrowers. Economic downturn, which may cause a rise in
defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims and collateral
value. A drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls
below the outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase
the severity of claims. Low mortality rate of borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over time.
This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as there is a
risk of the property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set
aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates
technical reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and
the method prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group also
takes out quota-share reinsurance from its approved mortgage
reinsurers and excess-of-l0ss reinsurance arrangement in an effort
to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in
accordance with the approved selection framework set by the
Credit Committee. The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject
to periodic reviews. For financial guarantee cover provided to Als,
the Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the
borrowers to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility
will be shared proportionately between the Group and the lender
on a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a regular
basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between the actual and
expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2012, if combined ratio had increased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2011: HK$6
million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been HK$4 million (2011: HK$6 million) higher.
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CHEE Financial assets
RehEHEs Cash and short-term funds
EREATFE Loan portfolio, net
EREE Investment securities

— HEEIH — held-to-maturity
tRER Financial liabilities
HinaE Other liabilities

— ERERE — deferred consideration
BERTERES Debt securities issued
BBTIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities

issued
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. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts
and fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly
presented on the Group’s statement of financial position at their
fair value. For quoted instruments, bid prices are used to estimate
fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for liabilities.
For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value, the fair value is approximately equal to their carrying value.

WREE AVE

Carrying value Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011
TET FBT THERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
9,715,544 10,245,165 9,715,544 10,245,165
25,895,399 33,135,818 25,895,399 33,135,818
9,237,808 8,269,143 9,748,868 8,540,409
4,200,129 4,182,266 4,200,129 4,182,266
36,064,340 40,205,399 36,067,827 40,211,498
214,672 367,137 214,243 366,404

The following methods and assumptions have been used to
estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

(@) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair
value of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The
estimated fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally
less than 3 months, is based on discounted cash flows using
prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar
credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of
the deposits is approximately equal to their carrying value.
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Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed
rate. Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices
or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Other liabilities — deferred consideration

These represent the deferred consideration used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“the Government”) in December 2003 and January 2004 with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount.
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(g) Fair value hierarchy

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at
fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based
on:

m Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1),

m Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2),
and

m Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

AEEREAAH AEBRART
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
R-ZZ-——£+-f=t-H RZZ——F+ZRA=1+—A
As at 31 December 2012 As at 31 December 2011

Ei=l] = ot E—E E-E ksl
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TET THT THT THAT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,443,013 1,443,013 - 1,559,187 1,559,187
BHFERE Investment securities

—AHHE — available-for-sale 4,241,650 1,571,177  5812,827 2,009,404 294,299 2,303,703

4,241,650 3,014,190 7,255,840 2,009,404 1,853,486 3,862,890

&% Liabilities
fTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 175,095 175,095 - 139,582 139,582
MinERRETE R Debt securities issued

PARFEZEEA designated as at fair value

BRMBETES through profit or loss upon

o initial recognition - 340,287 340,287 = 891,808 891,808

- 515,382 515,382 = 1,031,390 1,031,390

There is no (2011: nil) financial instrument measured at fair
value using a valuation technique that is not supported by
observable market data (Level 3).

BAFEFENERTIAYE(ZF
——F  E)ERBEEARBETSEE
ERNHETE(E=RE)
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3.7.

BEXER

AEEEREARN(HREDELRIINMHMN
MRIRER) [#E5 ] RE)MBRMT
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KA RIE]) HIENEARNRE
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PRI DR

e NEER

mERARENEERER

B REMERERARNTESREER @ &
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B EREEREARER R ERE -

AEBEEEEREMBARRRMNER
EEES|(THEE])  BREREARRE
REREEESNMAE - H3ITE2RIE
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miEsI TR ERKEEATRE R °

REARBM B AR RRMANESIEFTE
MEFERBERXRSE - EFEREAEER
IR ARP KA R R®RE - FA
7R 815 78 57 B B R B & I T B0 5l B9 A
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3.7.

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

m To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);

m To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

m To support the Group’s stability and growth;

m To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

m To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the
Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (“Guidelines”) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-based
capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio
("CAR") stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the
Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely
breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the Financial
Secretary. During the year, the Group complied with all of the
capital requirement set out in the Guidelines by the Financial
Secretary.
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TRBMAAEER 2 RARNEAEREA The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
RERT R o the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
[N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
REB & A Retained profits 5,302,410 5,173,228
el contingency reserves 977,773 731,562
H i Other reserves 316,484 173,958
SRz ) A 2 Non-controlling interest 12,423 12,169
A& A A ERORE Allowance for loan impairment under
FR{E2 B collective assessment 4,052 7,622
R Deductions (20,122) (159,962)
RN Total capital base 8,593,020 7,938,577
BARTBE Capital Adequacy Ratio 20.2% 19.7%
4. FARRGHEST IR 4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

AEERAYHT EHRFENEERAETIK
BAREZMETRER - ARESRBBELR
REMAR(BEREBBER THRAREREH
MAIRTEH) - FERT AP IELET R A -

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4. BERESHRERE

AEEE D E T EEFAS AR
B - BEEREBESE BT ARRRE
REEGHEE T EMBRASHE - &£
A3 Bl H B SR A S BIV B SR TR AR RER
SRR RRESEE TR E
HEE ﬂi%f&Aaﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬁﬁ
AR -ABRANERTRRE = - &ﬁﬁ
AM%QE@%EKH SR R O A A
EIRE fhET AR RIR R IR AWFE
R L Z BRI ER Fﬁﬁ%@Aﬁﬁm
BEBEBBRLER - NEESE R
§+5E5'5£E$//|L§§E&ET FEEJE’JJ?/?E&@““ ’
PAR/ME IR R BB RCRIER o
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4.1.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be
identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4,
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial
instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal
volatility in listed price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate
when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of
the investment, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such
as due to significant deterioration of such investments or selling
close to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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4.5 F|EH

AEBEBEBHANEH - BENSH
BERSHELEAMGT - AEEXBBIET
ETNZ AR S Mt B o & & I8 8 A
E o AKRBEENGEF AT B HESNEIN
BIR - ARG EENARE -

5. WD
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HARBEGERE—DEEE  ERBEBL
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4.5. Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for profits tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered
ancillary to mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a
way that performance is measured at Group level in a single segment for
mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment outside Hong
Kong includes mortgage assets in Korea, an investment in a jointly
controlled entity in Malaysia disposed in December 2012 and an
investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, China. The chief operating
decision maker assesses the performance based on geographical
segments.
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TRELE DN - ar REMER o The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for

operating segments of the Group.

&8

Hong Kong
FExT
HK$'000

BB
Outside
Hong Kong
F#ET
HK$'000

e
Total
TET
HK$'000

BE-ZE——F Year ended 31 December
+=ZB=+—HBLEEE 2012

HEUA Interest income 1,019,858 115,504 1,135,362
FEXZH Interest expense (284,103) (39,160) (323,263)
F A B A Net interest income 735,755 76,344 812,099
EmilRE FE Net premiums earned 533,536 - 533,536
H A Other income 234,850 (2,379) 232,471
TGN Operating income 1,504,141 73,965 1,578,106
FA RO B 5 Net claims written back 6,642 - 6,642
e HiFEsE Net commission expenses (162,541) - (162,541)
L Operating expenses (204,045) (15,222) (219,267)
REDRERTHA L% A Operating profit before impairment 1,144,197 58,743 1,202,940
B R E B # Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 5,680 - 5,680
FE(L RS EA25% K Share of profit of a jointly controlled

entity - 2,450 2,450
R B A A Profit before taxation 1,149,877 61,193 1,211,070
g Taxation (85,524)
IREE S H Profit for the year 1,125,546
FREXRFZ Capital expenditure during the year 11,982 - 11,982
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BB

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

BB AN
Outside
Hong Kong
T
HK$'000

Rk
Total

T T
HK$'000

BHE_ZT—%F Year ended 31 December 2011
+—A=+—HIEFE
M BWA Interest income 867,718 164,884 1,032,602
FEZE Interest expense (124,694) (53,095) (177,789)
FF B ULA Net interest income 743,024 111,789 854,813
EmERE F5E Net premiums earned 658,854 - 658,854
E AU A Other income 206,191 (8,326) 197,865
TGN Operating income 1,608,069 103,463 1,711,532
FA RO B F 5 Net claims written back 17,618 - 17,618
A& HFsE Net commission expenses (108,000) - (108,000)
LT Operating expenses (166,875) (25,057) (191,932)
REDBERTH KL% Operating profit before impairment 1,350,812 78,406 1,429,218
BERRERE Loan impairment charge (3,141) - (3,141)
FE(E LRI HIEE2% 7 Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 2,830 2,830
B A5 AT v ) Profit before taxation 1,347,671 81,236 1,428,907
] Taxation (173,225)
AR [ S5 7| Profit for the year 1,255,682
FRNEARFAZ Capital expenditure during the year 22,877 = 22,877
AR
58 Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong
FHExT F#&xT
HK$'000 HK$’'000
R-ZB—=F As at 31 December 2012
+=—B=+-—H
DIEE Segment assets 48,366,698 4,498,259 52,864,957
SEAGE Segment liabilities 38,878,093 4,374,027 43,252,120
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BB AN

BB Outside 4R
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FH&TT FB T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE——F As at 31 December 2011

+=A=+—"H
DB E Segment assets 48,982,599 7,388,702 56,371,301
HEZEH EBIEE Investment in a jointly controlled entity = 130,045 130,045
EEMAE Total assets 48,982,599 7,518,747 56,501,346
SEAaE Segment liabilities 40,667,094 7,267,011 47,934,105
6. FEEAN 6. Interestincome
REEHE
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRBE Loan portfolio 584,044 623,425
RekmHEe Cash and short-term funds 213,263 100,937
BHEE— W Investment securities — listed 203,331 98,285
FHEE —IELET Investment securities — unlisted 134,724 209,955
1,135,362 1,032,602
7. FBXH 7. Interest expense

rEE
The Group

2012
TR
HK$'000

BARAENEHERNIETESZ - Bankloans, debt and MBS issued wholly

BEITERRIZEES repayable within 5 years 305,913 151,690

BERAFABHEEND BT Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
B RIZEES within 5 years 17,350 26,099
323,263 177,789

AEEMEXHBEI2EBL(ZF——F : Included within interest expenses are HK$321 million (2011: HK$174 million)
174 T) WIEU A FEZ L ABzEMEF  for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
BfE-
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8. ZXIBRMEEREREFZMIUZEEIR 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and
guarantee business

rEH
The Group
2012 2011
FH&xT FHIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ERE (fizEa) Gross premiums written (Note a) 556,885 644,102
BRERE Reinsurance premiums (112,347) (114,569)
1RB B F 58 (T 5F 28(a)) Net premiums written (Note 28(a)) 444,538 529,533
RmER B HR D F 58 Decrease in unearned premiums, net 88,998 129,321
BEm IR B F 58 (K17 28(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 28(a)) 533,536 658,854
FR R O B F 5 (M5 28(h)) Net claims written back (Note 28(b)) 6,642 17,618
BB REREFE Net premiums earned after provisions 540,178 676,472
BeH commission expenses (188,910) (125,785)
BRRARMNEE S H Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 26,369 17,785
e 55 Net commission expenses (162,541) (108,000)
B E 12 5 2 AT A E i A Net premiums earned before management
REFEE expenses 377,637 568,472
BEERY (D) Management expenses (Note b) (26,450) (29,526)
AR Underwriting gains 351,187 538,946
BiaE - Note:
@) FREIEROIZIBRMERS /N2 (@ Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
DREFNCERNERERLTEZIR insurance cover on mortgage loans with a small portion of
BHIRE o guarantee fees written from guarantee business on loans to

SMEs and premiums written from mortgage insurance cover
on reverse mortgage loans.

() TEBEXAKIFI0&L T HH—If (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating
S o expenses in Note 10.

N
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9. HurA

9. Other income

REHE
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IREERER KBS Early prepayment fees and late charges 5,059 14,903
MEE 5, Z= =B Exchange difference 29,937 51,049
E@MITAEAFELZE)FRE Net change in fair value of financial
instruments 12,850 3,366
AT E FTRRE R EBA Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 90,135 65,071
HERE M EFEE (EE12) Net gain on disposal of investments (Note 12) 90,260 64,952
& R E B E W Gain on disposal of investment in a jointly
(FfF 7% 23) controlled entity (Note 23) 7,137 -
Hb Others (2,907) (1,476)
232,471 197,865

ST AERAFEZSAE N TZIEREN : ()
EEANFEE RO T TAAREEE17E
B (2T ——F : RZFK6,4008 8 70) R H
BEATFEKZI1SIEBT(ZE——F : A
57008 %7T) R (i) A& FBE RS AR
PMETEAFEKREIOEET(ZF——4F:
100 &5 70) RIEE A A FEE LT ABEHE %
TEHEEFAFEBE0EBT(ZT——F
50088 7T) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of
(i) HK$170 million fair value loss on hedging instruments designated as
fair value hedge (2011: HK$64 million gain) and HK$181 million fair value
gain on the hedged items (2011: HK$57 million loss); and (i) HK$7 million
fair value gain on derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes (2011: HK$1 million) and HK$5 million fair value loss on debt
securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2011:
HK$5 million).
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10. &2 H 10. Operating expenses
rER
The Group

2012 2011
FE&T T 7T
HK$°000 HK$'000

EEKA Staff costs
He KER Salaries and benefits 135,497 124,411
BRIRERK A — R EHKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 7.458 6,396

WAE Premises
e Rental 19,618 9,929
HAftb Others 8,747 6,311
BExMe Directors’ emoluments - =
e (MIsE25) Depreciation (Note 25) 14,127 8,609
B 48 & = IR 7S Financial information services 5,756 5,627
= Consultancy fees 7,547 9,615
TG HE R ES S Marketing and advertising expenses 6,914 8,135
HAbsg & Other operating expenses 13,603 12,899
219,267 191,932
1. BB & 11. Auditor’s remuneration
REE
The Group

2012 2011
FE&T F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz R Audit services 1,366 938
B b AR %5 Other services 433 1,068
1,799 2,006
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12. HEREHWEEFEEA 12. Net gain on disposal of investments

REE
The Group
2012
F#&T
HK$°000
HERENKEFEE - Net gain on disposal of investments:
— 22BN — A —HERFHEER — realisation of amounts recognised in
REzRIE (f5E32) reserves up to 1 January (note 32) 38,230 51,884
— RFEEA N FEE — net gain arising in current year 52,030 13,068
90,260 64,952
13. BRIREERRE (1#E) 13. Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances
REHE
The Group
2012 2011
FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRURER B (BE) Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
— & FHE (H5E20(0)) allowances — collective assessment
(Note 20 (b)) 5,680 (3,141)
14. $ilE 14. Taxation
(a) RESWSRMIORBBIES : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REEHE
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFER Hong Kong profits tax
— S HIFTEH — Current income tax 81,940 169,114
— BAFERAE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (14) =
81,926 169,114
BB LASMRIA Taxation outside Hong Kong
— BHIFTEM — Current income tax 521 _
IERERIE Deferred taxation
— REFEELH — Charge for current year 3,077 4,111
85,524 173,225
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LA F S E A b AT E SR B R A R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (=& ——4F : 16.5%) B B &t (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
REBNETEE - ARERBUIMNE For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax rate prevailing
ERMBAT - SRFAEBEREESER in the relevant country is used. Deferred taxation is calculated
HHREFE - BEEFRIEUE BEEIR in full on temporary differences under the liability method
165%(—F ——4F : 165%) W EEF using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%).

K E 2R E5E o

NEE KRR AR A A B IR B A RS The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
MEFEMNERSENEZEZNT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate

of Hong Kong as follows:

REHE
The Group

2012 2011

F&T FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRELRT R Profit before taxation 1,211,070 1,428,907
#165% (- F——4: Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

16.5%) T K=t & (2011:16.5%) 199,827 235,770
FEAG L[R2 6 & B s A Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly

BT E controlled entity (404) (467)

BRI A Income not subject to taxation (135,314) (89,138)

R k53 Expenses not deductible for taxation

purposes 21,429 27,060

BAEFERARE Adjustment in respect of prior years (14) =

FRIERF S Taxation charge 85,524 173,225

(b) EAFEIR R R A BB IEEREES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

rEE N
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THET FAT THET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHIEARE Current income tax
liabilities 101,587 134,785 100,563 135,131
ERERIBAE Deferred income tax
liabilities 109,404 52,672 109,103 52,696
210,991 187,457 209,666 187,827
RZEBE-——FR-_ZFT——%+=-A There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31
=+—0B  BEAAEARBEERER December 2012 and 2011.
1A o
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ERERE(EE) AENTREKRDD

The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/

RERNESHMT liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
r5E
The Group
RERE
MEBEFRE  Impairment
Accelerated allowances AFE#E BHEHKHM
tax and Fairvalue  Cash flow k]
depreciation  provisions changes hedges Total
TAT FHL THL TAx FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——F—F—H Asat1January 2011 3241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
PR AR Charged to the income
Statement 1,805 2,306 - - 4,111
RSN (f3E32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 9,316 2,078 11,394
RZE——F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=+—-H 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 (2,617) 52,672
R R R0k Charged to the income
statement 19 3,058 - = 3,077
RiEZ A (i3E32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) = = 52,748 907 53,655
R-Z--f As at 31 December 2012
+=HA=t—-H 5,065 (6,410) 112,459 (1,710) 109,404
PN
The Company
RERE
MEBIERE  Impairment
Accelerated allowances AFE#E BEHREM
tax and  Fairvalue  Cash flow k]
depreciation  provisions changes hedges Total
THT TET THT TAExT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——F—F—H Asat1January 2011 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
iNEE ARl Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,330 = = 4,135
WERAR (F5532)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - = 9,316 2,078 11,394
R_E——F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=+—-H 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 (2,617) 52,696
RKER AR Charged to the income
Statement 19 2,733 - - 2,752
ARERS NN (FF3E32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 52,748 907 53,655
R-E-—& As at 31 December 2012
+=HA=t—-H 5,065 (6,711) 112,459 (1,710) 109,103

Rt-EAR  BEANEXEEHERE
E/aEREKRE A -

There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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15. ZEEHF 15. Profit for the year

NN BB T R AR P AR S K 4% 1,097,537,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the
BT (=& ——14F : 1,226,370,000787T) ° Company to the extent of HK$1,097,537,000 (2011: HK$1,226,370,000).
16. 128 16. Dividend

PN
The Company

2012 2011
TEx THAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

R ESRERAZ0.3758 7T Proposed dividend of HK$0.375
—E——%F :0175%87T) (2011: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 750,000 350,000

RZT—ZFM_FT——FENH=ZF——FF The dividend paid in 2012 and 2011 in respect of 2011 and 2010 were
—E-THEEZREVAISEBT(ERE®EAK  both HK$350 million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share). The directors
017587) - RZZE—=FWA+HHE ' EFE proposed a final dividend in respect of 2012 of HK$0.375 per ordinary
HEE T - —FRPKEFREBAX0.375%8  share on 15 April 2013. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a
L EEEBREMBEA - BUKREWTEYA  dividend payable until it has been approved by shareholders.

FERTPR S ©

17. IRERBHESE 17. Cash and short-term funds
REE RATF
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FTHET FAIT FTET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
$ITEE Cash at banks 185,886 43,499 180,602 38,642
BATEER Time deposits with banks 9,529,658 10,201,666 9,407,741 10,083,205
9,715,544 10,245,165 9,588,343 10,121,847

MEeRERME BRehERBELEE B For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
TERS BB =EA AR HER - equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of transaction.

rEE AT

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEx FHT FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIRE Cash at banks 185,886 43,499 180,602 38,642
RITEHER Time deposits with banks 1,018,243 9,942 514 896,326 9,936,345
RekERREER Cash and cash equivalents 1,204,129 9,986,013 1,076,928 9,974,987
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N-ZE——F+-F=+—HMEE&NZERI®RE Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2012 included guarantee
HE  PEER/NEEEERTE THERER  fee of HK$140,241,000 received under the special concessionary
it BT U B Y HE 1R B 140,241,00078 7T (F5£27) © measures of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 27).

18. FEULFI B R EER

18. Interest and remittance receivables

PN | KAF]
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THAT TAT TERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DA & TE RO FE LR 2, Interest receivable from
— FEBEE L — interest rate swap contracts 223,426 240,949 223,426 240,949
— EBERE — investment securities 99,950 88,046 99,950 88,046
— RITEEK — time deposits with banks 20,857 12,461 20,146 11,861
RS K ELF B Interest receivable and
&l INEA instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 125,357 249,542 116,893 237,214

469,590 590,998 460,415 578,070

19. $TE LT H
(a) ERATTETE

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) Use of derivative

AEEEATINTE T AH A AREEN
ERER

ERRFRBEH LU —ER ISR
S—HRERENEG - EREHEK
MRS MEAGNEEE SR - [RET
BRI REXSH TS REBRA
T ARENEERARAXZH T RE
BTEEEMEERREONEEK
Ko REESERITRATE  BEEH
BEALLD - RTSHRBEREEAR
FARER o

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts
and the liquidity of the market.
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ETREESRTIANERSE AN
BRR R TR TARMH — AL ERmE
o ERVGRBSRRERSREN
SEATAEFNNATE At T
EERRASE@BNEEXERRR
B 2 T 45 1) 2R R B o AR 5 L R SR A0 R
B TAETAAEEAKEELRF
(BE)XTF(BE)NTE - ITEE
BTANAHOREECHELR LA
NETNTERE - RITEEREER
BEZATFRE AT TR RIEKE °
FEsBERITETARFEHNTX -

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The
derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.
The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate
significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative
instruments held are set out below.

AEERAANT
The Group and the Company

Y% %
ZReH AYHE £EEH NEE

Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE notional BE afE
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities

THT THT THT TR THT THT

0 FEARBEEEE

Derivatives not qualified as

FERTAETR hedges for accounting
puUrposes
F &= 5 Interest rate swaps
Bz Currency swaps
(i) RPEHHTEIA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
F i H Interest rate swaps
B currency swaps
CRATEEE/ Total recognised derivative
(B &z assets/(liabilities)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

3,494,637 54,383 (4,541) 544899 63,220 (13,880)
3,491,405 19.421 - 7890297 11,69 (12,884)
73,804 (4,541) 74916 (26,764)

16,785,925 1,226,686 (252) 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607)

17,464,320 142,523 (170,302) 16,503,853 233,544 94,211)

1,369,209 (170,554) 1,484,271 (112,818)

1,443,013 (175,095) 1,559,187 (139,582)
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(b) ¥ /05

WOTETRARAFEHSHIRSRY
o RERREME - ARKNA EH
Bif - ARENATEHHNIZEER
RRERD HTEBES X FENER
B = B P 5| B I R R A SN E [
MM EMERER R_F——F+=
HA=+—B  IEEMETEARE Y
HOTETR(ZE——%F 1 &) o

() EERARBERRSE RS

EERAREEMEMEMBEA/EILERE
MPTET A/ DMK - BERKEER
BREBIERBEANTT R L RIESIFTER
T AREBUEREBIRHHTFTIED
BT ©

MTETARONBERARBERRE
SRR SEHNT X - 25 RIAEFT
ANERXZHHFETERGE LN
@,

(b) Hedging activities

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change in fair
value of underlying debt securities issued. There were no
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31 December
2012 (2011: nil).

(c) Replacement costs and potential future credit

exposures

The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked to
market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer to
the amount as computed in accordance with the Guidelines on
the Capital Adequacy Ratio. The Group has not experienced
any non-performance by its counterparties.

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements with the counterparties.

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
BEARRK BIERR
FERR EEmE
BEEBRA Potential EENA Potential
Replacement  future credit Replacement future credit
cost exposure cost exposure
THET THET THAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEH Interest rate contracts
— F|E G HR — Interest rate swaps 1,438,514 99,888 1,527,223 131,599
EXRA4) Exchange rate contracts
— Bk — Currency swaps 180,484 571,814 263,227 806,232

1,618,998 671,702 1,790,450 937,831
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20. ERESRE 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERE S RIE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
rEH P N
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
TET FAET T TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RREZHEE Mortgage portfolio
= Residential
— &8 — Hong Kong 16,530,736 20,402,305 12,584,243 15,442,530
— &4 — Qverseas 4,355,258 7,239,972 4,355,258 7,239,972
mE Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
FHLHEE Securitised portfolio
(BI7E34) (Note 34) - 169,762 - -
FERIBETHEE Non-mortgage portfolio 1,013,457 1,331,401 1,008,332 1,331,401
25,899,451 33,143,440 21,947,833 23,013,903
SRR ERE Allowance for loan
impairment (4,052) (7,622) (4,030) (7,478)
25,895,399 33,135,818 21,943,803 28,006,425
R-TE——F+-_A=+—H UEXK As at 31 December 2012, the mortgage portfolio had a
EHREEFE - RARFTARMIZEE weighted average remaining term of 11 years (2011: 11 years)
HRPEFNEAT - RBEREEH on a contractual basis, without taking into account any
EFAFRRST—F (2T ——F ¢ prepayment of local mortgage loans. Final maturity of the
T—F) RBEEREAERER=-Z mortgage portfolio is in the year 2052 (2011: 2050).
A-FEH - (ZF——F: ZFAT
%)
EREREBABLERES MAREER Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
ReFBARNBEILLAT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:

KEE KATF
The Group The Company

2012 2012

SR ERE@AE  Total allowance for loan

HEGHEE B impairment as a
CoIERaNs percentage of the
gross loan portfolio 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03%
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(b) FABERA S HER IR EREE

(b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio

rEE AAE
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEx FHET FTEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HATE Collective assessment
n—A—H As at 1 January 7,622 2,029 7,478 2,027
N EE (Released)/charged to
(B[E)),/ #tE income statement
(BIzE13) (Note 13) (5,680) 3,141 (5,558) 2,999
W e B M E R Recoveries of loans
previously written off 2,110 2,452 2,110 2,452
R+=-—A=+—H  Asat31December 4,052 7,622 4,030 7,478

EHEFRERRFR - EZBERERK
MER M B RI™E - SEREINRE
ERBEFAEELRERE

AT RHE R @R 2 REE RS T
W

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into
account the current market value of the collateral of the
delinguent loan. There is no impairment provided for overseas
and commercial mortgage portfolio.

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a portfolio
basis are analysed as follows:

r5E AT
The Group The Company

2012 201 2012 2011
TRT TAT TRT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETMAE@EE  Gross impaired loan

portfolio 2,197 4,923 2,197 4,923
EXRERE Allowance for loan
impairment (380) (591) (380) (591)
1,817 4,332 1,817 4,332
ERREREG Allowance for loan
MEERES impairment as a
BENBE I percentage of gross
impaired loan portfolio 17.3% 12.0% 17.3% 12.0%
HEETHAAEE  Gross impaired loan
MEFEA B portfolio as a percentage
MBERL of gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.02%
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rEE Y YN
The Group The Company

2012 201 2012 2011
TR TAT TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A AT R Allowance for loan

NAI B8k Al impairment under
BRI ERFTE collective assessment for
ERRNEREE loans not individually
identified as impaired 3,672 7,031 3,650 6,887
() EREESHNRMEREREFE (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan

portfolio

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company

2012
RIE WAL AREYN REEEREQ

MIRRE FEWA IR
Present value Interest Total

of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHET FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RUATEARIEY ZRIE :  Amounts receivable:

—— %R — within one year 89,919 18,210 108,129
——FRBRERER — after one year but within

five years 312,425 56,765 369,190

— RAF® — after five years 605,988 68,806 674,794

1,008,332 143,781 1,152,113
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AEBRARAF]
The Group and the Company
2011
IREWAE L RRAER  HEEWRALD
HIEIRE A EWA SRIR4BRR
Present value Interest Total

of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHTT FHTT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RUATEARIEY ZRIE ©  Amounts receivable:

—— %R — within one year 110,457 24,274 134,731
— —FRERLFA — after one year but within
five years 399,125 76,599 475,724
— hF1% — after five years 821,819 97,583 919,402
1,331,401 198,456 1,529,857
RZE——F+_A=+—HEZ=ZF There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable
——&F+=-—A=+—H ' AEBRERD as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 of the Group
70 4 o e o FE B R UL GRIE 1B R E B and the Company.
1 o
21. BHKRE 21. Investment securities
(a) AT H &85 (a) Available-for-sale securities

REERAD T
The Group and the Company

2012 2011
Tz TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

RAFEYIIRNERES  Debt securities at fair value
REBFEIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 334,014 —
LT Unlisted 2,160,316 294,299

AT ESIRSEMZES  Other securities at fair value

REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 3,318,497 2,009,404
Al EFES5AEE Total available-for-sale securities 5,812,827 2,303,703
HthESFERIMEBEES KEHER Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate

BfErtER - investment trust.
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BRETHRERISAIHEER SN Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
D issuers as follows:
REERADT
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R1T R H At & mikiE Banks and other financial institutions 1,834,625 294,299
N Public sector entities 295,448 -
AR R BT Central government 364,257 -
HAth Others 3,318,497 2,009,404
5,812,827 2,303,703
A ER SN EESBmaT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
REBERARDF
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
F#ET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
n—A—H As at 1 January 2,303,703 3,403,966
1% 40 Additions 4,161,064 645,167
e KER Sale and redemption (1,011,501) (1,853,946)
1 5 Amortisation 4,535 931
N EES Change in fair value 357,875 107,682
GNEE B b 7= KA Exchange difference (2,849) 97)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 5,812,827 2,303,703
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(b) HEEFHES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

REBEREARRD T
The Group and the Company

2012 2011
FTERT T
HK$'000 HK$°000

SR NI IR B & 75 75 % Debt securities at amortised cost

RES LT Listed in Hong Kong 2,532,909 1,495,927

REBRIN BT Listed outside Hong Kong 2,953,324 3,029,614

5,486,233 4,525,541

JEET Unlisted 3,751,575 3,743,607

HEEIHRHFER Total held-to-maturity securities 9,237,808 8,269,148
EESATE Market value of listed securities

—RAEIH — held-to-maturity 5,815,111 4,692,973

RBETHEERDRE EIHESN Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
™ issuers as follows:
AEBRAEAF

The Group and the Company

2012 2011

FH&xT FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R1T R E S RS Banks and other financial institutions 5,120,077 5,198,773

NCIRMSE Corporate entities 2,043,777 1,294,334

N Public sector entities 1,267,853 894,070

HR RS Central governments 767,362 830,863

Efb Others 38,739 51,108

9,237,808 8,269,148
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BEZIBESNEHFMIT The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:

AEBRAEAT
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rn—H—H As at 1 January 8,269,148 8,033,133
140 Additions 1,926,101 1,743,272
e K ER Sale and redemption (957,690) (1,508,858)
5 Amortisation (12,520) (10,761)
NS 5 KR Exchange difference 12,769 12,362
Rt=A=+—H As at 31 December 9,237,808 8,269,148

22. BATIIRE 22. Interests in subsidiaries
KAF

The Company
2012 2011
FH&xT T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
JE LTI D - BANME Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
B B8 A &) T /R ZR I8 Due from a subsidiary 3,840,609 4,883,648
3,943,669 4,986,708

B AR RZIBEER REETERS - WiE  The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
MHHEETE ° repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.
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RZZE——F+-_A=+—H WEBAFHMFE The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are:
o

1 B 3L it B ERT CEMBAFE FEERRE
Place of FEEK Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
BEERBEEARAR B BARERIZBEF  1,000,000%7T 100%
BRETBEREEIAT
HKMC Mortgage Management Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 100%
Limited and servicing ordinary share each
YA E R = mh A AR H RIBERERFER ARE1VEILFEMER 90%
BRAF]
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered 90%
Limited business capital
23. X EIEHIERESE 23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity
REE
The Group
2012 2011
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mn—H—H As at 1 January 130,045 130,720
BRI IR & FE(G B 7 Share of profit, net of tax 2,450 2,830
AN B 5 7= 58 (P 3 32) Exchange differences (Note 32) 5,276 (3,784)
H b E) — AT EHEE Other equity movement — fair value reserve
(Ff7E32) (Note 32) (32) 279
o RREES E IR E Disposal of investment in a jointly controlled
entity (137,739) =
Rt+—A=+—H As at 31 December - 130,045

bINNET|
The Company

2012 2011
FTERT TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

JEETIRG - NAE Unlisted shares, at cost - 120,554

RZZ—ZF+-A AEETHKEHEEERS  In December 2012, the Group completed the disposal of all its interest in
R TRMURBEREREBOLRZEGIEZEER  ajointly controlled entity, Cagamas HKMC Berhad, with the principal
Cagamas HKMC Berhad#) PTG # 2 - &R E  activities of mortgage guaranty business in Malaysia, at a cash
137188 TT ° consideration of HK$137 million.
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HENHKREHERBNEEMBENT : The following are the assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity
disposed of:
FAT
HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 138,221
mEIAE Current liabilities (482)
HERFEE Net assets disposed of 137,739
2REAE KIS AN FERFEE Cumulative exchange gain and fair value reserves
(Ff5E32) (Note 32) (7,733)
HE W Gain on disposal 7,137
RE Consideration 137,143

R-ZE——F+-"F=+—H "EERARBIL Asat 31 December 2011, assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled

EZHEENEENBENEZ  D5lA entity in respect of the Group’s interest are HK$130,709,000 and
130,709,000 7 7T 1 664,000 7 7T © HK$664,000, respectively.

24. AGRRRIE - RERHMBEE 24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

AEE PN
The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

FET THIT FEx FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WEEE Repossessed assets 2,024 454 957 454

NG =3 E2 Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
FEM AT & (1) Dividend receivable from

RERE available-for-sale

investments (listed) 22,185 14,363 22,185 14,363

H b fE 1A Other receivable - - 7,984 161,268

Hith Others 14,682 11,530 14,644 11,952

39,641 27,097 46,520 188,787

H i JE U 3008 2 2 45 Bauhinia MBS Limited SA& ~ Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS
EZIBE S LA EIBITHIRIBES - Limited for the redemption of the MBS issued under the MBS
Programme.
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25. EIE&EE

25. Fixed assets

Leasehold
improvement
TAT
HK$'000

BOERE
BhRER
office
equipment,
furniture
and fixtures
AT
HK$'000

X5H
The Group

EK
Computers
TET
HK$'000

RE
Motor
vehicle
AT
HK$'000

wm
Total
TET
HK$'000

RZE—%—H—H Net book amount as at 1 January 2011

REFE 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22877
EE /R Disposal/write-off = (258) (28) - (286)
WE (F310) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (335) (335) (7,939) - (8,609)
MR H R Exchange adjustments - 14 26 - 40
RZB——&+Zf Net book amount as at 31 December 2011

=t+—RIRAFE 4,157 99 26,121 - 31,274
HE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
& (F1310) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,579) (381) (12,061) (106) (14,127)
HMBIE R R Exchange adjustments - - () - i)
R-Z--%+=H Net book amount as at

=t+-RAREFE 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,400 318 29,128
RZZ-—%+=A As at 31 December 2012

Er=F
AR Cost 13,042 7,158 156,479 650 177,329
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,450) (131,079) (332) (148,201)
REFE Net book amount 2,702 708 25,400 318 29,128
RZF——%+=A As at 31 December 2011

==E
AR Cost 12918 7,085 151,016 26 171,245
25t E Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,089) (124,895) (226) (139,971)
RS Net book amount 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
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Vi UN|
The Company
BhRER
office

HEWEEEL  equipment, i
Leasehold furniture EK Motor k]
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
THET THL THT TAT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-E——&—F—A Net book amount as at 1 January 2011

IR 182 353 15,445 — 15,980
WE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22877
neE Depreciation charge (232) (204) (7.472) - (7,908)
R-ZE—4%+=f Net book amount as at 31 December 2011

=+—RIREFHE 4,157 991 25,801 = 30,949
WE Additions 124 93 11,341 24 11,982
neE Depreciation charge (1,579) (376) (11,754) (106) (13,815)

R-E--&+=8 Net book amount as at
=t+-AREFE 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,388 318 29,116

R-B——%+-F As at 31 December 2012

=1+-AH
RAE Cost 13,042 7.130 155,058 650 175,880
25E Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,422) (129,670) (332) (146,764)
IREFE Net book amount 2,702 708 25,388 318 29,116
W-Z——&+-FH As at 31 December 2011

==
RAE Cost 12918 7,057 149,606 26 169,807
25E Accumulated depreciation 8,761) (6,066) (123,805) (226) (138,858)
IREFE Net book amount 4,157 991 25,301 - 30,949
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26. FEFTRIE

26. Interest payable

rEE VN
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FTHERT TAT THEx FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT & IR B F 2 Interest payable from
— BRTEKES — debt securities issued 200,951 226,895 200,951 226,895
— FIEBEE 4 — interest rate swap contracts 33,488 9,128 33,488 9,128
— BETIRIBESR — mortgage-backed securities
HasE issued and other liabilities 1,317 1,221 1,247 1,105
235,756 237,244 235,686 237,128

27. 11?§1'J'IIIEIE BRI REBE

27. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities

iy 3L
The Group

PN
The Company
2012
TER
HK$'000

2012
TERT
HK$'000

201
TAT
HK$'000

201
TAT
HK$'000

FEFIRTE R RS Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 102,628 74,215 114,767 74,407
HibfE Mz Other payable - - 210,474 358,929
HihaE Other liabilities 4,340,370 4,182,266 4,340,370 4,182,266
H A #4 Other provision 22,118 18,402 22,118 18,402
4,465,116 4,274,883 4,687,729 4,634,004
HibBEEPNEREERTZITHERESR  Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee of HK$140,241,000 (2011:

& e AT U 2 O B4R B 140,241,000 T (=T ——
F ) (HFE38) BEREAR-_FT=F1+_
AR—ZETME-ABBRNBEENRBENREER
22 B hn 3R 45 e M AR AE X £ 4,200,129,00078 7T (=
T ——4F : 4,182,266,0007T) °

BHE_ZT——#+-FA=+—8 KAREH
Bauhinia MBS Limited i} & 308 % L2 18 & 3R
BHb - WHEBZEERRFEL2HENEE -
RIZBERE [BEFEEFE] - RN [HAvfE
{F3R38 | 7R — 2 &1 Bauhinia MBS Limited £ &
E- RN FB——F+-_A=+—H KRR ®
AT 2% R B E th & A /I8 /5 210,474,000 7T (=
T ——4F : 358,929,000/ T) °

HKS$nil) received under the special concessionary measures of the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 38) and the deferred consideration
of HK$4,200,129,000 (2011: HK$4,182,266,000) used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government
in December 2003 and January 2004.

Up to 31 December 2012, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
loans in aggregate to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which,
the Company continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan
portfolio, net” to the extent of the guarantee and continuing
involvement. A liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other
payable” has also been recognised. As at 31 December 2012, other
payable was HK$210,474,000 (2011: HK$358,929,000) in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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28. RIGEBRERBRIGEE 28. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

XEE r&E
The Group The Group

2012 2011

e BRE B e ARk

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
TET TET TER THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARMREREREAEE  Provision for unearned premiums and

guarantee fees 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568.916 199,467 1,369,449

RREAREE Provision for outstanding claims
— BER/(E)RER — claims reported/(recovery) 8,228 (2) 8,230 1,881 ¥ 1,883
—EELBRRRHER — claims incurred but not reported 41,579 6,404 35,175 59,798 9,446 50,352
49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235

1,545,863 222,007 1,323,856 1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684

FAT N
The Company The Company
2012 201

8 BRE R £8 BiRR

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
TET TET TET T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AMERERIERERAMR  Provision for unearned premiums and

guarantee fees 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449

RREREE Provision for outstanding claims
— BER/(fE)RER — claims reported/(recovery) 8,228 (2) 8,230 1,881 v 1,883
—EBEABRBRER — claims incurred but not reported 43,792 6,769 37,023 59,798 9,446 50,352
52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,235

1,548,076 222,372 1,325,704 1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684
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() RMHARERIERERBHEEZH (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned

SHWT premiums and guarantee fees
AEEREAAH AEERART
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2012 2011
E] BRE B 8 ARk e
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TR TR TR THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®—A—H As at 1 January 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770
BERE (FizE8) Premiums written (Note 8) 556,885 112,347 444,538 644,102 114,569 529,533
EREBRE (fiE8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (629,745) (96,209) (533,536) (764,240) (105,386) (658,854)
R+=—B=+—8H As at 31 December 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449
(b) SRR F IR EE TS ITIOT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding
claims

Xr5E AEE
The Group The Group
2012 2011

e B e BRE B
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THT THT THT THIT THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

®—F—H As at 1 January 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
EREBER Claims paid (2,479) (285) (2,194) (690) - (690)
B EER Claims recovery 53 47 6 764 225 539
BEAHRR(fIE8) Claims incurred (Note 8)
—BHRER — claims reported 8,772 238 8,534 1,807 (63) 1,870
—BEEERBRAR  — claims incurred but not

reported (18,218) (3,042) (15,176) (24,813) (5,325) (19,488)
B+=—A=1+—H As at 31 December 49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235
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LN KRA]
The Company The Company
2012 2011

8 BRRE B £ BRR

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
THER TEx TEx AT AL AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R—A—R As at 1 January 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
EARLES Claims paid (2,662) (285) (2,377) (690) - (690)
EUEEES Claims recovery 53 47 6 764 225 539
BELHER Claims incurred
—DHBAR — claims reported 8,955 238 8,717 1,807 (63) 1,870
—BEAERRFHR — claims incurred but not
reported (16,005) (2,677) (13,328) (24,813) (5,325) (19,488)
“t=A=t+-A As at 31 December 52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,035
(c) BEF R AR (c) Liability adequacy test
EITABRRARR  ZRE2HLEHR The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
eRERFREEBASHEBRCRE contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
HEREE - ARBETIR T ——F claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December
F+TZA=+—Bk=ZFE——%F+=A 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s insurance liabilities
=+—0 AEEEGRARKBARE - are adequate.
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29. BETEBEES

29. Debt securities issued

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company

2012
TR
HK$'000

2011
TAET
HK$'000

R A SIIR B 5 Debt securities carried at amortised cost
B LA EIES DIP notes 559,800 2,199,566
FEIESFEITATEIES MTN notes 2,832,695 1,497,209
FRH SE AR AR IR B (BTG B 5 4858 Total debt securities carried at amortised cost 3,392,495 3,696,775
EEREPIE B U A FEE Debt securities designated as hedged

WEKES items under fair value hedge
BB LAEIES DIP notes 9,079,358 12,949,071
TEBHEITE REMES RBIP and other notes 50,999 50,488
FHIES TR EIES MTN notes 23,541,488 23,509,065
FERE AEHIE B W AR TEEH Total debt securities designated as hedged

MBS B S B items under fair value hedge 32,671,845 36,508,624
RUBERAFEEAUATE Debt securities designated as at

BT ABRNERES fair value through profit or loss

upon initial recognition

BT AEIES DIP notes 138,996 697,917
ZEEHFEITHEIREMES RBIP and other notes 201,291 193,891
RAIE RS E A AR TE Total debt securities designated as at

Bt ABBRNESE S4B fair value through profit or loss upon

initial recognition 340,287 891,808

BB TER B SRR Total debt securities issued 36,404,627 41,097,207

NER TREET(ZE——F: ZHEME
1,000,000,0007& 7T ) R V1A TR B IE E A A F1E
BAABENETES ZSeRHAEZAT
BEEEHFENELEFRANE - RYIIGFHEREIET
BUAFEZGABENSHE BROERA
SERBEASOFATREBRANESRFTAE AN
B & % 4489130004 (= T — — F:
567,392,000 7T) °

ZEEEANATEIENSRAEREEMNE
REBRARATZ EEAREE -

During the year, no debt securities (2011: nominal value of
HK$1,000,000,000) were designated on initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. The fair value changes are attributable to changes
in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$48,913,000 (2011: HK$567,392,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the

credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at
fair value.
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BEITEFSEFNESBMAT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
rEH PN
The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

FEx FHIT FEx FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

n—A—H As at 1 January 40,312,410 38,470,471 40,312,410 38,748,622
1T Issuance 19,098,302 28,549,278 19,098,302 32,957,267
B BB Less: Redemption (24,149,259) (26,707,368) (24,149,259) (31,394,008)
HNEETE 5 =58 Exchange difference 6,731 529 6,731 529
ZEEERE Total nominal value 35,268,184 40,312,410 35,268,184 40,312,410
TEAEHEDD Unamortised portion of discount (129,005) (655,896) (129,005) (655,896)
REEFHE Fair value adjustment 1,265,448 1,440,693 1,265,448 1,440,693
R+—A=+—H As at 31 December 36,404,627 41,097,207 36,404,627 41,097,207

REFEITOES Notes issued during the year comprise:

AEBERALQT

The Group and

the Company

RS 5 B 1T 5T 2

MTN

FET

HK$'000

BETSEHEE Amount issued at nominal value 19,098,302
B U E R IE Consideration received 19,076,997

PBEBITHNEBEFIBASEEEFEE - All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group,
MmETZEEB B F e ERE—REEESRIE  and are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
BEERR - refinancing.
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30. ERTIRIBES

30. Mortgage-backed securities issued

rER
The Group
2012 2011
FHExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R SR A IR M IR BB A1 b MBS at amortised cost under the MBS
FTEI TR BE 5 (K1FE37) Programme (Note 37) 214,672 367,137
n—H—H As at 1 January 367,137 1,505,650
ko HEE Less: Redemption (152,465) (1,138,513)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 214,672 367,137

FERBEEFDABRARNEKRET W AH
AREEERBERECREES METT - 1218
B 48 A F210,474,00058 T( =T — — F ¢
528,691,000 7T ) B 1E A& BT 2 1 THZ18 78 7 1) 1 17
m(f5E37) c RZFE—=F+-A=+—HMN=
T——F+-A=+—0  FACETIRESE:
AR RIYER °

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$210,474,000 (2011: HK$528,691,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 37). As at 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011, all MBS issued are guaranteed by the Company.

31. BBEF 31. Share capital
“E-TFR
—_E=——fF
2012 and 2011
FER
HK$'000
VERE Authorised

FImEE 1B TR0 ERE B 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000

BEITRAR Issued and fully paid
FAREE 18R 20 (B AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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32. HihfEdE 32. Other reserves

X£E
The Group

ERfEE AVERE Hnfe B

Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation o)
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THT THT TAT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z——%—F—H Asat 1 January 2011 437,435 255,191 (23,757) 9,866 678,735
ARHEEARN Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEEE : securities:
— REBWRTE — net unrealised gains - 107,682 - - 107,682
— HEBSB (f:E12)  — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (51,884) - - (51,884)
— gl — amortisation* - 663 - - 663
— B (P 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - (9,316) - - (9,316)
— REBUWEFE — — net unrealised gains — jointly
HREEHES controlled entity (Note 23)
(Ffi7E23) = 279 = - 279
BE i m Cash flow hedges
—EBEERRAMZE — net gains arising from hedges
W TR E recognised in other
Wz R comprehensive income - - 2,39 - 2,39
—EAUEERMATME  —fairvalue changes transferred to
2E income statement - - 10,195 - 10,195
— B (FI5E1400) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - = (2,078) = (2,078)
HHERER Currency translation difference
—MEAR — subsidiary - = = 4,829 4,829
— HREHIZE (523)  — jointly controlled entity (Note 23) - = - (3,784) (3,784)
Hip2Ea Other comprehensive income - 47,424 10,513 1,045 58,982
BRE R AEE D R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
BB IR E 3 5B R 50% 2K premium earned from retained profits
75% Z R B E to contingency reserve 307,140 - - - 307,140
mEREERRE Release of contingency reserve to
RE A retained profits (13,013) - - - (13,013)
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S 1
The Group

EREE AVERE Hrfe EHRE

Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation k]
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THT THT T THET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE——F As at 31 December 2011/
+=f=+—-8/ 1 January 2012
22— —_#—Hf-H 731,562 302,615 (13,244) 10,911 1,031,844
AL EER Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATERE) securities:
— REBWEHFE — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - = 357,875
— HEREE (fi512)  — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (38,230) - - (38,230)
— B — amortisation * - 39 - - 39
— B (FsE14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = (52,748) - - (52,748)
—RERERTE — — net unrealised losses — jointly
HEEHEE controlled entity (Note 23)
(FffzE23) = (32) = = (32)
B Cash flow hedges
—BAMERN — fair value changes transferred to
AT ELE income statement - = 5495 - 5,495
— BiIE (T 14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (907) - (907)
ERERESR Currency translation difference
—MBAR — subsidiary - - - 914 914
— HFEEHIEE (F5E23)  — jointly controlled entity (Note 23) - - - 5,276 5,276
HELFEHEEZER  Release of fair value and translation
REMATERERN reserve upon disposal of investment
ES AR VA)) in a jointly controlled entity (Note 23) - (410) = (7,323) (7,733)
Hip2Eke Other comprehensive income - 266,494 4,588 (1,133) 269,949
BRGNS R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
[EBR IR E % 5B /) 50% K premium earned from retained profits
75% Z R iEE to contingency reserve 266,266 - - - 266,266
REREERRZE Release of contingency reserve to
RER A retained profits (20,055) - - - (20,055)
R-Z-—%+ZA As at 31 December 2012
Er=10[ 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 9,778 1,548,004
o AERBERARITHLEFFERERAZIHES  ~ amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
B PO s TR B o transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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PiN/NS]
The Company
El NTERE Eapalic
Contingency Fair value Hedging s
reserve reserve reserve Total
FAET FAT FAT FTAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——F—HA—H As at 1 January 2011 437,435 255,028 (23,757) 668,706
A EEH Change in fair value of
NEEZE) : available-for-sale securities:
— RER T — net unrealised gains - 107,682 - 107,682
— HERER — realisation on disposal
(MiEE12) (Note 12) = (51,884) = (51,884)
— B — amortisation* - 663 - 663
— Bi3E (FifE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = (9,316) - 9,316)
B mENFR Cash flow hedges
—HEREMEE — net gains arising from
W SR B )R hedges recognised in
Wi 558 other comprehensive
income - - 2,396 2,396
— BAMERD — fair value changes
NTEEE) transferred to income
Statement - - 10,195 10,195
— Bi3E (FifE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = - (2,078) (2,078)
Hi 2 EK Other comprehensive income - 47,145 10,513 57,658
HIRBEAEREDHE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
[ERREFENS0%E  premium earned from retained
75% Z R R profits to contingency reserve 307,140 = = 307,140
HERRFERDZE Release of contingency reserve to
RE & retained profits (13,013) - - (13,013)
RZZE——%F As at 31 December 2011/
+=—A=+—8/ 1 January 2012
—ZT——%—H—H 731,562 302,173 (13,244) 1,020,491
AEHEZFANATE  Changein fair value of
2E) available-for-sale securities:
— KRB F — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - 357,875
— HERER — realisation on disposal
(HizE12) (Note 12) - (38,230) - (38,230)
— B — amortisation* - 39 = 39
— B (ME3E140) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = (52,748) - (52,748)
HEmENFR Cash flow hedges
— BAMERD — fair value changes
NFEES) transferred to income
Statement = = 5,495 5,495
— A (M 140)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = - (907) (907)
Hi 2 EE Other comprehensive income - 266,936 4,588 271,524
HIRBGEAERETHE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
R EFFEEN50%3,  premium earned from retained
75% ZE R profits to contingency reserve 266,266 - - 266,266
HERRERDZ Release of contingency reserve to
TR 7 retained profits (20,055) - - (20,055)
N-BE-——F As at 31 December 2012
+=H=+—H 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 1,538,226

* AERFEBERAIHREEESHREREEIHIS  ~
[SyNlEaE S 3

amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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33. HFFAALEINIMNEKXRRKS

(a) AR RIBFBAIAIRNAIMNEE S EERA

SR - ARBEBAALIILT

LR o

HEFERAREESSREER([EH
SER R BEIETIEE
ARARERHEELEERTEEN
BT AR REE ZFRISATIRME
AEREERERE TAZZ
——FHM10EB (=T ——
FI0B8B L) GBEBEER ' 1F
BERARGHER

—
=

(i) SNEERSFZEEEESERAANAF
RS0 EETHREREE R =
T—_F+-_A=t+—HUERE
BB (T ——F &)

(il R =T—=F+=-_A=+—H K
NafEB27EBILREBINEE
SEBREF(ZE——F: £):
&

vy R=ZF—=—F » A2 7 #&111,030
EBT(ZT——F : 83085 L)
TEESER FAREESER
EBHEETHER -

HBRERFNZHBRE TSR

() ARRRAFERAAREEARHEL
= WP RARREERETR  ®
TR HAN60EET(Z
T——F :708ET)EeTEE
TER

(i) R=F——_FARARAPKAFE
EEBE127EET(ZE——F:
118 BB L) IRIBE

33. Material related party transactions

(al The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong

Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA"),
a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i) the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets Unit
(“CMU") Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1
million (2011: HK$1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA for
such services in 2012;

(i) the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the
Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and
there was no outstanding balance (2011: HK$ nil) as at 31
December 2012;

(i) the Company held investment of HK$270 million (2011: HK$
nil) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and Notes as at
31 December 2012; and

(iv) the Company paid a secondment fee of HK$10.3 million
(2011: HK$8.3 million) for secondees from the HKMA in
2012.

Transactions with the Government included the following:
(i) the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) and paid a total of HK$6.5

million (2011: HK$7.8 million) rental to the HKMA under the
direction of FSI;

(i) the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$127 million
(2011: HK$118 million) from FSI in 2012;
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206

(i) RZF——F+-A=+—H" ' K
REFBAAEETL(ZE——F:
A61BETT) BAEBNESFNIRE

ESEHB1,7808BL(ZF——F

00&8BTT) + &

e

(iv) AR R EBATEF] e - BT H
ANABE RN R E ERE S
T MIRITRE R ERREL B
BREEANSEET TUEE
BERERNAERES1,000(E%8
TC(MIFES8) °

HE2ENBAREERBEEARAR
MR 5B TFIRE :

() AARIBMERRNER S ERRE
BrRig B HiRiamRe - R

(i) tFR/NEVERGTEIMZES - HIF
REFHBEANBBREBERER
REFE2EE B ORTT - FFT/D
WEHF B2 BE R RIEGH
- BERBEBBERANBARA
AMBETR  SRENENRE
HEEHEOHWES °

HEFRARNXR S BREAFRARME
TTHIRIBRE SRR (MIRE34) -

(i) the Company held investment of HK$454 million (2011:
HK$460 million) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds as at
31 December 2012 and the interest thereon was HK$17.8
million (2011: HK$18 million); and

(iv) the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government pursuant to which the Government would
provide reimbursement to the Company in respect of the
monetary obligations incurred by the Company in relation
to the 80% guarantee coverage provided by the Company
to banks in respect of facilities granted by them to
enterprises under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme
("SFGS"), with a total loan guarantee commitment of up to
HK$100 billion (Note 38).

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(“HMML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, included
the following:

(i) the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the course
of its ordinary business; and

(i) the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into loan
participation agreements under the Microfinance Scheme
pursuant to which HMML would fund all or part of the
microfinance loans as funding vehicle for the Company.

Transactions with the SPEs included the guarantee cover
provided by the Company for the MBS issued by the SPEs (Note
34).
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Rt-A=T—BERBALTEKEE
TEERRIT

The balances of the amounts due to and from the relevant
related parties as at 31 December were as follows:

TEE KAF
The Group The Company

B B HEAR BRAR

The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities

2012 201 2012 201 2012 201 2012 2011
TiEn TR TiEn TAL TiEn TR TiEn TAT

EREEATZE  Amounts due from group
(MisE2oMAtEE24)  companies (Note 22 and note 24)
EREEARZE Amounts due to group companies
Hifnfe 7B (Hz27) Other payable (Note 27)
Em&E(f5E27)  Other liabilities (Note 27)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

- = - - 3,840,609 4,883,648 7,984 161,268
- < - = - = 12,497 122
210,474 358,929
4,340,370 4182266 4,340,370 4,182,266 - = - =

RBEHAE Financial guarantees under the
BT ER MBS Programme - = - - - - M 3%7.252
BRI REE Total risk-in-force - - - - 486,252 776,614 - -
b) EEEEEANSE (b) Key management personnel

IEEEEAEREEARIREE
KE - BEREHAREEBHOAL
BREEREREEAS -

AEETREEEABNFHHELE

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors
and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2012 2011

TR TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

e R HMBEEEREA  Salaries and other short-term employee

benefits 17,439 15,845
BB 12 R T Post-employment benefits 1,217 1,088
18,656 16,933

34. FFERATIREFL

AARIBBMREZAR  EBEBESFNE
(% —) AR A 7 & Bauhinia MBS Limited # 171%
BEFEEFALTE  BMRZMRIFEAQA
ERIRIBENAE - ZFEE SRS
BREEGEZEHBBRARRRTBHRREZALR
IE#ER -

34. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE”) namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPEs. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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ERARREREERBEFNEAKIERTREN
BRVER S LA R AR AR 0 [ % [ s
BEERILERIRIBESAES -

EARBHERUAE ML AERIZBEREAS
NEERERET X80 (MIFBAID) ER
KB - BRBESIE - QIS REPR LR
BERAES - REFRBEFHEARBESEIER
M BARNKIER

REDERTRHRIAMANTE 2 E L I ERE
HRRBEFRASE - RAARERNREES

AR AH S S EE 5 CR B DR E R K
BfE - V120 AEEE B R LR
REEERD TN EREERTFE -

HE(ENREZE®)REBEE2REAKRE —
BFRARMRE  ERRARERBRARNBEEE
B ERBAFR AR HEBERABIES - QIBLZRAF
ABRAR  ARARGARMBMRRARENEZE
SAARBENZBER - TREMERTRRA
AIMERAR R BARNEKILER - BREE
(ERIRBZBES)RBE 12 MENGA AR
BHMBIRRNZBESFEE ZRKEEL S B -

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Hf&F 20(@a))

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Note 20(a)) -

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual
right to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership therein.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise
transfers mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
but control is retained. These mortgage portfolio are recognised on the
statement of financial position to the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not
qualify for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of
the fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised
and the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK (SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPES when the substance of the relationships between
the SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by
the reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the mortgage
portfolio to the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following summarises the outstanding principal balances of the
mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPE that were derecognised from
the Company’s statement of financial position but were consolidated
back to the consolidated statement of financial position as a result of HK
(SIC) INT-12.

2011

THET
HK$'000

169,762
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35. ki 35. Commitments

(a) &EF (a) Capital
AEER AN E
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHE RETL) Authorised and contracted for 3,744 6,977
BHUEBRRETA Authorised but not contracted for 34,011 9,490
37,755 16,467
(b) EEEHL (b) Operating lease
REMEAR - BESAFHOLEHL Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
MZBYEH MR R R ST RBEH T operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed
T as follows:
r5H PN
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THET FAET FTHET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WARYE Office premises
RERH—1F not later than one year 20,087 19,633 19,847 19,396
SR—FFE later than one year and
PERAF not later than five years 12,928 33,007 12,210 32,057
33,015 52,640 32,057 51,453
36. IRIBIRIEHETS 36. Mortgage insurance business

ARRHRZEBRBRAREED ERR - £EK  The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-
BIRBR RS © sharing basis with its approved reinsurers.

RZF-—ZFF+ZA=+—0 BRERAETELD  As 31 December 2012, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$16.6
RI66RABT(ZF——F 1 166ABTT) * BF  pillion (2011: HK$16.6 billion) of which HK$2.8 billion (2011: HK$2.5 billion)
BEAT(ZF——F :25FBIL)EAZEE  was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$13.8 billion
REABRBERRR  MARRRABTEERT  (2011: HK$14.1 billion) was retained by the Company.
138BABTL(ZZT——F  1411EFT) HER -
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SA B IR MiEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R THIBEET(ZT——F : U{EHETT)
BHARBAENRBRRARBES - 18EET(Z
T——F 0FET) ARRRFARNBERBLRD
FRERABREBERBERRORZEKHREENRR
e MARRAREHSWER  BEEX
ER AR R A A] BEME AR K RO R o

37. EIRIREE

FRATDBEEERIPERRIGERER TR
TR - UIRBABESCAERERTARE
RABRERZIBES - EFC R ENERE
AARRERBRAR (LB RERRBESFMS -
AR RRHERERA) LEM —HIZBESFHER
RO - (TREZFEREEREENER

0
g °©

Out of the HK$13.8 billion (2011: HK$14.1 billion) of risk-in-force retained
by the Company, the excess loss of HK$1.8 billion (2011: HK$3.0 billion)
of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-of-l0ss
reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions, and
the Company retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss
and remote risk portions.

37. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by
way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in
accordance with the provisions under the relevant securitisation
programmes. The security trustee appointed under the relevant
securitisation programmes will enforce the securities over the relevant
pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed
MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series
of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in respect
of any series of MBS.

AEME
The Group
2012 2011
FE&T FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EERFEE Assets pledged
ZisEREE Mortgage portfolio 210,474 528,691
BEAEE Secured liabilities
BE1TIRBE S (M17E30) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 30) 214,672 367,137

EEMZEEFAS BREERARIRMAHKAE
HMERBEFAS (I7E34) - EEBRISE KA
ERERRFESAZHEEN [EFRESFHE]
NEERREE (f5E27) -

RZE——F+_A=+—HARk-_ZT——F+=

A=t—RYEEHREFREERTRITELD
RIBEREBORES

210

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio
recorded in the SPE's book (Note 34) and the transferred mortgage
portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to
the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 27).

No time deposits as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are
pledged as security deposits with a bank for mortgage guarantee
business in China.
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38. /N REE R IRET ST B4R 5
BEE

KEER  ARARZZE—-FAA=+—0%
BB/ PNEBEERETE - LREBOEFREK
¥R AR NAKERRENERERE
m o FREAANER - ABAXNHAERRE
AYERER1,000 BT - ALEFRIEEERE
mATEREERE - KB 2 BAN RN
EIREN REBRX - MASRKAFER T K
FiF o tRPTIREREY R E N R AN BERELE
B B EAESRE - RARREHMERNE
BYAERFEEM

EREBRFSHNNERERER  HAKENGS
Wt KRB RAERERNKA  BOREHEAM
HEERABAXIRETE - ERARRRERE
BNEEEEMER  ~AEBRBEHUTEM
BB AR a5 20 R BT o B - % EE am MR IR
RBRIRBINRAEENEERBERINAR R
B BAERRILENEARFTR RIS FEEXR
SHESR -

39. WBMFIMER

BEERN T =FNA+HBRBAPIERE -

38. Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

During the year, the Company introduced a new loan guarantee product
with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) from 31 May 2012 at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, with an application period of nine months and up to
a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by
the Government. All guarantee fees collected under this special loan
guarantee product are set aside to meet the relevant default claims and
related out-of-pocket expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee
fees, if any, will be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the
Government. The Company is responsible for the operation of the new
product and the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact on the
consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of guarantee fee
revenue, default claims or any direct expenses involved. Given that the
Company operates only this new product for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with the new product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for this product has not
been included as the Group’s off-balance sheet exposures and no
capital charge is required under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy
Ratio approved by the Financial Secretary.

39. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15
April 2013.
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